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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of the City Commission 
City of Ardmore, Oklahoma 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City 
of Ardmore, Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ardmore, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2022, 
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City of Ardmore, Oklahoma 
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1.A., the financial statements referred to above include only the primary government of the City of 
Ardmore, Oklahoma, which consists of all funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that 
comprise the City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's legal entity. 

These primary government financial statements do not include financial data for six of the City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's 
legally separate component units, which accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require 
to be reported with the financial data of the City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's primary government. As a result, the primary 
government financial statements do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the reporting entity of 
the City of Ardmore, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2022, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter. 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial 
statements of the reporting entity of the City of Ardmore, Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and our 
report thereon, dated February 10, 2023 expressed unmodified opinions on those financial statements. 
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered 
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's ability to continue as a going concern 
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial 
doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City 
of Ardmore, Oklahoma's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial 
doubt about the City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the 
audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 9-17 and 70-77 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City 
of Ardmore, Oklahoma's basic financial statements. The accompanying combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements schedule of state awards and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements 
and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the 
introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our 
opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form 
of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider 
whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the other 
information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected 
material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 14, 2024, on our 
consideration of the City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report 
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

))-1,7-e-egiArof 69A-4. 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
February 14, 2024 
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Our discussion and analysis of the City of Ardmore’s financial performance provides an overview of the 
City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.  Please read it in conjunction with the 
City’s financial statements, which follow this section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

� For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the City’s total net position increased by $16,125,802 or 
10.2% from the prior year. 

� During the year, the City’s expenses for governmental activities were $35.4 million and were 
funded by program revenues of $4.4 million and further funded with taxes and other general 
revenues that totaled $41 million. 

� In the City’s business-type activities, utilities and other program revenues exceeded expenses by 
$5.8 million. 

� At June 30, 2023, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $6.4 million or 24.4% of the 
total General Fund revenues for the year. 

� For budgetary reporting purposes, the General Fund reported revenues over estimates (excluding 
transfers) of $2,367,745 or 18.1%, while expenditures were under the final appropriations 
(excluding transfers) by $2,809,794 or 11.9%. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Except as noted below, the financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the City of 
Ardmore (the “City”) and its component units using the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB 
Statements No. 14, 34, 39, and 61.  Included in this report are government-wide statements for each of two 
categories of activities – governmental and business-type. Except as noted below, the government-wide 
financial statements present the complete financial picture of the City from the economic resources 
measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting.  They present governmental activities and 
business type activities separately and combined.  These statements include all assets of the City (including 
infrastructure capital assets) and deferred outflows as well as all liabilities (including all long-term debt) 
and deferred inflows. 

For various reasons, the City has elected to omit certain component units from this financial statement 
presentation.  See Note 1 to the financial statements for further information. 

Reporting the City as a Whole 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

One of the most frequently asked questions about the City’s finances is, “Has the City’s overall financial 
condition improved, declined or remained steady over the past year?”  The Statement of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way 
that helps answer this question.  These statements include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and 
deferred inflows using the accrual basis of accounting.  All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are 
taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
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These two statements report the City’s net position and changes in them from the prior year.  You can think 
of the City’s net position – the difference between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows 
– as one way to measure the City’s financial condition, or position.  Over time, increases or decreases in 
the City’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving, deteriorating, or 
remaining steady.  However, you must consider other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the City’s 
tax base, the condition of the City’s roads, and the quality of services to assess the overall health and 
performance of the City. 

As mentioned above, in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City 
into two kinds of activities: 

� Governmental activities  --  Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the police, fire, 
general administration, streets, and parks.  Sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, and state and federal grants 
finance most of these activities. 

� Business-type activities  --  The City charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of the cost of 
certain services it provides.  The City’s water, wastewater, sanitation and golf activities are reported here. 

Normally, these statements would also include a third type of activity, discretely-presented component units 
for certain entities that do not meet the criteria for blending, specifically the Ardmore Main Street Authority, 
Hardy Murphy Coliseum Authority, Ardmore Development Authority, Ardmore Animal Care Trust, 
Ardmore Regional Park Trust Authority, and Ardmore Tourism Authority. However, these component units 
are excluded from the City’s report because most of them report on a financial reporting framework which 
differs from the City’s financial reporting framework as detailed in Note B to the financial statements.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds – not the City 
as a whole.  Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants.  However, 
management establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or 
to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other money.

Governmental funds  -  Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus 
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for 
spending.  These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which 
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund 
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic 
service it provides.  Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer 
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs.  The differences of 
results in the Governmental Fund financial statements to those in the Government-Wide financial 
statements are explained in a reconciliation following each Governmental Fund financial statement. 
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Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides – whether to outside 
customers or to other units of the City – these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.  
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net 
Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position and Statement of Cash 
Flows.  In fact, the City’s enterprise funds are essentially the same as the business-type activities we report 
in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. 

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Position 

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  In the case of 
the primary government, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by 
approximately $173.3 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

TABLE 1

NET POSITION (In Thousands)

% Inc. % Inc. % Inc.

(Dec.) (Dec.) (Dec.)

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Current assets $   59,780 $ 59,185 1% $ 36,734 $  35,101 5% $   96,514 $   94,286 2%

Capital assets, net      51,618    51,175 1%    49,563     49,784 0%    101,181    100,959 0%

     Total assets    111,398  110,360 1%    86,297     84,885 2%    197,695    195,245 1%

Deferred outflow of resources        7,659      3,918 95%      1,866          690 170%        9,525        4,608 107%

Current liabilities        3,227      3,163 2%      5,560       5,147 8%        8,787        8,310 6%

Non-current liabilities      12,319      8,726 41%      8,792     12,557 -30%      21,111      21,283 -1%

     Total liabilities      15,546    11,889 31%    14,352     17,704 -19%      29,898      29,593 1%

Deferred inflow of resources        3,157    10,938 -71%         867       2,150 -60%        4,024      13,088 -69%

Net position

   Net investment in capital assets      51,310    50,944 1%    38,080     34,232 11%      89,390      85,176 5%

   Restricted      27,304    23,747 15%          -          - -      27,304      23,747 15%

   Unrestricted      21,740    16,760 30%    34,864     31,489 11%      56,604      48,249 17%

     Total net position $ 100,354 $ 91,451 10% $ 72,944 $  65,721 11% $ 173,298 $ 157,172 10%

Total

Governmental

Activities Activities

Business-Type

The largest portion of the City’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, 
machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  For 
2023, this net investment in capital assets amounted to $89.4 million.  The City uses these capital assets to 
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the 
City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot 
be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Net position of the City’s governmental activities increased 10% to approximately $100.3 million.  Most 
of this net position is either restricted as to the purposes it can be used for, or is invested in capital assets 
(buildings, roads, bridges, vehicles and other items).  Governmental unrestricted net position showed a 
balance of $21.7 million at the end of this year. Net position of the business-type activities increased 
approximately 11% to approximately $72.9 million.  $38.1 million of that net position is the net investment 
in capital assets.  Consequently, unrestricted net position showed approximately $34.9 million at the end of 
the year. 
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Changes in Net Position

For the year ended June 30, 2023, net position of the primary government changed as follows:  

% Inc. % Inc. % Inc.

(Dec.) (Dec.) (Dec.)

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Revenues

Charges for services $        1,790 $      2,084 -14% $    20,059 $   18,095 11% $   21,849 $   20,179 8%

Operating grants and contributions           1,574         2,213 -29%             -           -           -        1,574        2,213 -29%

Capital grants and contributions           1,059         4,133 -74%             -           -           -        1,059        4,133 -74%

Taxes         38,026       39,950 -5%             -           -           -      38,026      39,950 -5%

Intergovernmental revenue              400         4,751 -92%             -           -           -           400        4,751 -92%

Investment income              192           (136) -241%            223           197 13%           415             61 580%

Miscellaneous           2,422         4,265 -43%              28             38 -26%        2,450        4,303 -43%

     Total revenues         45,463       57,260 -21%       20,310      18,330 11%      65,773      75,590 -13%

Expenses

General government         11,312       19,495 -42%             -           -           -      11,312      19,495 -42%

Public safety         12,028         9,380 28%             -           -           -      12,028        9,380 28%

Streets           4,243         4,283 -1%             -           -           -        4,243        4,283 -1%

Culture, parks and recreation           4,599         4,860 -5%             -           -           -        4,599        4,860 -5%

Cemetery              365            318 15%             -           -           -           365           318 15%

Airport           1,098         3,888 -72%             -           -           -        1,098        3,888 -72%

Economic development           1,704         1,616 5%             -           -           -        1,704        1,616 5%

Interest on long-term debt                  2                3 -33%             -           -           -               2               3 -33%

Water               -             -           -         6,404        5,947 8%        6,404       5,947 8%

Wastewater               -             -           -         4,371        4,309 1%        4,371        4,309 1%

Sanitation               -             -           -         2,861        2,468 16%        2,861        2,468 16%

Golf               -             -           -            660           672 -2%           660           672 -2%

     Total expenses         35,351       43,843 -19%       14,296      13,396 7%      49,647      57,239 -13%

     Excess (deficiency) before

       transfers         10,112       13,417 -25%         6,014        4,934 22%      16,126      18,351 -12%

Transfers          (1,209)        (1,615) -25%         1,209        1,615 -25%            -            - -

Change in net position           8,903       11,802 -25%         7,223        6,549 10%      16,126      18,351 -12%

Beginning net position         91,451       79,649 15%       65,721      59,172 11%    157,172    138,821 13%

Ending net position $    100,354 $    91,451 10% $    72,944 $   65,721 11% $ 173,298 $ 157,172 10%

TABLE 2

CHANGES  IN NET POSITION (In Thousands)

Total

Governmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities

Explanations for significant changes are as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

Operating and capital grants and contributions decreased 29% and 74%, respectively, mainly due to 
significant airport-related grant money received in the prior year. Intergovernmental revenue decreased 
92% due to ARPA grant revenue received in the prior year. Investment income decreased 241% due to a 
decrease in the fair market value of investments in the current year. Miscellaneous revenue decreased 43% 
due primarily to reimbursements from the Ardmore Main Street Authority for matching costs related to the 
Depot Park project in the prior year. 

Business-Type Activities: 

There were no significant changes in business-type activities compared to the prior year. 
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Governmental Activities 

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is given.  Of 
particular interest is the format that is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance.  You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column 
with revenues from that particular program reported to the right.  The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue.  
The reason for this kind of format is to highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on 
the City’s taxpayers.  It also identifies how much each function draws from the general revenues or if it is 
self-financing through fees and grants or contributions.  All other governmental revenues are reported as 
general.  It is important to note all taxes are classified as general revenue even if restricted for a specific 
purpose . 

Explanations for significant changes are listed above, under Table 2. 

Net Revenue (Expense) of Governmental Activities

(In Thousands)

% Inc. % Inc.

(Dec.) (Dec.)

2023 2022 2023 2022

General government $     11,312     1 9,495 -42% ($10,814)      (18,463) -41%

Public safety        12,028       9 ,380 28%   (10,132)        (7,922) 28%

Streets          4,243       4 ,283 -1%     (4,020)        (4,036) 0%

Culture, parks and recreation          4,599       4 ,860 -5%     (3,606)        (3,505) 3%

Cemetery             365          3 18 15%        (294)           (237) 24%

Airport          1,099        3,888 -72%        (357)            368 197%

Economic development          1,704       1 ,616 5%     (1,704)        (1,616) 5%

Interest on long-term debt                 1              3 -67%            (3)               (3) 0%

   Total        35,351 $   43,843 -19% ($30,930) ($35,414) -13%

TABLE 3

Total Expense

of Services

Net Revenue

(Expense)

of Services

The City’s business-type activities include utility services for water, wastewater, sanitation and golf.   

% Inc. % Inc.

Dec. Dec.

2023 2022 2023 2022

Water $   6,404 $   5,947 8% $  2,399 $ 1,797 34%

Wastewater      4,371      4,309 1%     1,352       859 57%

Sanitation      2,861      2,468 16%     1,980    2,126 -7%

Golf         660         672 -2%          30        (84) -136%

     Total $ 14,296 $ 13,396 7% $  5,761 $ 4,698 23%

of Services

Net Revenue

(Expense)

of Services

TABLE 4

Net Revenue (Expense) of Business-Type Activities

(In Thousands)

Total Expense
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A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS 

As the City completed its 2023 fiscal year, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$54 million, which is an increase of $10,599,383 as compared with the prior year.  The enterprise funds 
reported combined net position of $72.9 million, which is an increase of $7.2 million compared with the 
prior year. 

Other fund highlights include: 

� For the year ended June 30, 2023, the General Fund’s total fund balance increased by $5,760,982 
or approximately 33.1%.     

� There is $16,724,697 of fund balance in the General Fund that is restricted and/or assigned for 
specific purposes. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

� For the year ended June 30, 2023, the General Fund reported revenues over estimates (excluding 
transfers) of $2,367,745 or 18.12%, while expenditures were under the final appropriations 
(excluding transfers) by $2,809,794 or 11.9%. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of June 30, 2023, the City had $101.2 million invested in capital assets, net of depreciation, 
including police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, streets, and water lines and sewer lines.  (See 
Table 5).  This represents a net increase of approximately $0.2 million from last year. 

Capital Assets

(In Thousands)

(Net of accumulated depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Land $         6,827 $       6,827 $          449 $          449 7,276$           7,276$           

Buildings          21,083        21,119        29,335        30,210 50,418 51,329

Computers            1,808          2,075             111             111 1,919 2,186

Furniture and fixtures               331             262               13               17 344 279

Vehicles            1,456          1,602             991          1,131 2,447 2,733

Machinery and equipment               832             862             781             740 1,613 1,602

Infrastructure          18,973        18,197        17,684        17,127 36,657 35,324

Intangible leased equipment               173             231             -              - 173 231

Subscription asset               135              -             198              - 333                 - 

     Totals $       51,618 $     51,175 $     49,562 $     49,785 101,180$       100,960$       

TABLE 5
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This year’s more significant capital asset additions include, but are not limited to: 

Street Construction Improvements  $ 2,224,974 
Engineering at City Lake       511,484 
Water Line Improvements       974,785 
Sewer Improvements     1,723,606 
Airport Improvements     1,139,100 
Wastewater Plant Improvements       369,897 

See Note 4 to the financial statements for more detail information on the City’s capital assets and changes 
therein.

Long- Term Debt 

At year-end, the City had $14.2 million in long-term debt outstanding which represents a $3.6 million or 
20.4% decrease from the prior year.  The City’s changes in long-term debt by type of debt are as follows:  

Total

Governmental Business-Type Percentage

Activities Activities Total Change

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2022-2023

Lease Obligations 174$                232$                192$             $               - 366$               232$             100.0%

Notes payable 136                   - 11,484 15,552 11,620 15,552 -25.3%

Claims payable 275 257                 -                  - 275 257 7.0%

Deposits subject to refund                   -                   - 421 386 421 386 9.1%

Accrued compensated absences 1,207 1,114 291 275 1,498 1,389 7.8%

     Totals 1,792$             1,603$             12,388$        16,213$          14,180$          17,816$        -20.4%

TABLE 6

Long-Term Debt

(In Thousands)

See Note 5 to the financial statements for more detail information on the City’s long-term debt and changes 
therein. 

The Economic Outlook 

In the Fiscal Year 2023-2024, the City of Ardmore, Ardmore Public Works Authority, and Ardmore Solid 
Waste Authority developed the budget with defined goals and conservative revenue projections. The 
adopted budget for FY23-24 contains $71,177,622 in estimated revenues, $101,831,020 in estimated 
expenditures and $17,269,757 in transfers between funds, and finally, $62,490,025 in beginning fund 
balances to balance the budget. Estimated ending fund balances in all funds are estimated to be $31,836,628. 
As in the past, the City’s General fund is not keeping up with the increasing cost and demands for services. 
The FY23-24 General Fund has budgeted expenses exceeding budget revenues by $10,517,147 before 
transfers-in of $8,782,430 and transfers-out of $943,000. The General Fund cannot meet the Commission’s 
goal of maintaining a sufficient reserve without relying on transfers-in from the utility funds. We have a 
long way to go to attain that goal. Our budgeted transfers-in for FY 23-24 are $1,151,259 more than the FY 
22-23. 
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Contacting the City’s Financial Management 

This report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with an understanding of 
the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the resources it receives.  If you have 
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the City Clerk’s office at 23 S. 
Washington, Ardmore, Oklahoma 73402 or telephone at 580-223-2934.  
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – GOVERNMENT-WIDE 
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Government-Wide Statement of Net Position– June 30, 2023 

Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 9,776,103$         9,001,319$         18,777,422$       

Investments 43,625,977 24,221,391 67,847,368

Accounts receivable, net of allowance - 2,701,260 2,701,260

Court fines receivable, net of allowance 236,284 - 236,284

Internal balances (477,414) 477,414 -

Receivable from other governments 4,709,687 - 4,709,687

Other taxes receivable 166,736 - 166,736

Other receivables 118,584 - 118,584

Inventories 56,037 332,389 388,426

Prepaid expenses 100,125 - 100,125

Lease receivables 821,886 - 821,886

Net pension asset 646,823 - 646,823

Capital Assets:

Land and construction in progress 6,826,854 448,526 7,275,380

Intangible equipment, other capital assets, net of 

depreciation and amortization 44,790,958 49,114,164 93,905,122

Total Assets 111,398,640$     86,296,463$       197,695,103$     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amount related to pensions 7,074,332 1,614,605 8,688,937

Deferred amount related to OPEB 584,614 251,769 836,383

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 7,658,946 1,866,374 9,525,320

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,334,253$         1,094,975$         2,429,228$         

Accrued interest payable - 68,990 68,990

Due to other governments 295,014 - 295,014

Due to bondholders 7,636 - 7,636

Due to employees 41,211 - 41,211

Other payables 1,296,399 15,278 1,311,677

Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 252,932 4,380,717 4,633,649

Due in more than one year 1,422,873 8,007,055 9,429,928

Total OPEB liability 1,899,745 559,316 2,459,061

    Net pension liability 8,880,191 226,039 9,106,230

    Lease obligations 116,597 - 116,597

Total liabilities 15,546,851 14,352,370 29,899,221

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amount related to pensions 1,009,799 389,257 1,399,056

Deferred amount related to OPEB 1,166,538 477,421 1,643,959

Deferred amount related to leases 980,570 - 980,570

Total Deferred Inflows 3,156,907 866,678 4,023,585

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 51,309,518 38,079,944 89,389,462

Restricted for:

Community enhancement 5,687,952 - 5,687,952

Streets 2,843,599 - 2,843,599

Culture and recreation 11,467 - 11,467

Capital projects 5,463,387 - 5,463,387

Public safety 553,523 - 553,523

Grant programs 4,471,661 - 4,471,661

Cemetery 104,001 - 104,001

Library capital improvement 377,903 - 377,903

Economic development 121,951 - 121,951

Donor provisions-library 4,624,854 - 4,624,854

Debt service 3,043,305 - 3,043,305

Unrestricted 21,740,707 34,863,845 56,604,552

Total net position 100,353,828$     72,943,789$       173,297,617$     

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 A

R
D

M
O

R
E

, 
O

K
L

A
H

O
M

A

A
N

N
U

A
L

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T

A
s 

o
f 

a
n

d
 f

o
r
 t

h
e
 Y

ea
r
 E

n
d

e
d

 J
u

n
e 

3
0

, 
2

0
2

3
  

2
0

G
o

v
e
rn

m
en

t-
W

id
e
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
A

c
ti

v
it

ie
s 

–
Y

e
a

r 
E

n
d

e
d

 J
u

n
e
 3

0
, 

2
0

2
3

P
ro

g
ra

m
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e

F
u

n
c
ti

o
n

s
/P

ro
g

ra
m

s
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s

C
h

a
rg

e
s 

fo
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 G

ra
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s

C
a

p
it

a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

B
u

si
n

e
ss

-t
y
p

e
 

A
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

T
o

ta
l

P
ri

m
a

ry
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
c
ti

v
it

ie
s

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t

1
1
,3

1
1
,6

4
6

$
  

  
 

4
7
2
,0

3
7

$
  

  
  

2
5
,5

1
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(1

0
,8

1
4
,0

9
4
)

$
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(1
0
,8

1
4
,0

9
4
)

$
  

  
 

P
u
b
lic

 S
a
fe

ty
1
2
,0

2
7
,7

9
2

3
1
2
,2

1
2

1
,2

1
4
,8

7
5

3
6
9
,0

5
5

(1
0
,1

3
1
,6

5
0
)

-
(1

0
,1

3
1
,6

5
0
)

S
tr

e
e
ts

4
,2

4
3
,1

0
6

-
2
2
3
,5

2
0

-
(4

,0
1
9
,5

8
6
)

-
(4

,0
1
9
,5

8
6
)

C
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

4
,5

9
8
,9

7
8

9
2
7
,0

7
5

5
1
,5

7
6

1
3
,9

9
8

(3
,6

0
6
,3

2
9
)

-
(3

,6
0
6
,3

2
9
)

C
e
m

e
te

ry
3
6
5
,4

9
9

7
1
,6

2
0

-
-

(2
9
3
,8

7
9
)

-
(2

9
3
,8

7
9
)

A
ir
p
o
rt

1
,0

9
8
,6

0
6

7
,1

6
7

5
9
,0

0
0

6
7
5
,5

7
3

(3
5
6
,8

6
6
)

-
(3

5
6
,8

6
6
)

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t

1
,7

0
3
,6

3
8

-
-

-
(1

,7
0
3
,6

3
8
)

-
(1

,7
0
3
,6

3
8
)

In
te

re
s
t 

o
n
 L

o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 d
e
b
t

1
,5

3
4

-
-

-
(1

,5
3
4
)

-
(1

,5
3
4
)

T
o
ta

l 
g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
c
ti
vi

ti
e
s

3
5
,3

5
0
,7

9
9

1
,7

9
0
,1

1
1

1
,5

7
4
,4

8
6

1
,0

5
8
,6

2
6

(3
0
,9

2
7
,5

7
6
)

-
(3

0
,9

2
7
,5

7
6
)

B
u

s
in

e
s
s-

T
y
p

e
 A

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

W
a
te

r
6
,4

0
4
,4

6
6

8
,8

0
4
,0

2
1

-
-

-
2
,3

9
9
,5

5
5

2
,3

9
9
,5

5
5

W
a
s
te

w
a
te

r
4
,3

7
0
,8

9
9

5
,7

2
2
,5

4
1

-
-

-
1
,3

5
1
,6

4
2

1
,3

5
1
,6

4
2

S
a
n
it
a
ti
o
n

2
,8

6
0
,7

9
1

4
,8

4
0
,3

3
6

-
-

-
1
,9

7
9
,5

4
5

1
,9

7
9
,5

4
5

G
o
lf

6
5
9
,6

4
5

6
8
9
,5

8
5

-
-

-
2
9
,9

4
0

2
9
,9

4
0

T
o
ta

l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
-t

y
p
e
 a

c
ti
vi

ti
e
s

1
4
,2

9
5
,8

0
1

2
0
,0

5
6
,4

8
3

-
-

-
5
,7

6
0
,6

8
2

5
,7

6
0
,6

8
2

T
o
ta

l 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t

4
9
,6

4
6
,6

0
0

$
  

  
 

2
1
,8

4
6
,5

9
4

$
 

1
,5

7
4
,4

8
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

1
,0

5
8
,6

2
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

(3
0
,9

2
7
,5

7
6
)

$
  

5
,7

6
0
,6

8
2

$
  

  
(2

5
,1

6
6
,8

9
4
)

$
  

  
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

re
v
e

n
u

e
s
:

T
a
x
e
s
:

S
a
le

s
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 t

a
x
e
s

3
3
,7

2
2
,1

4
7

$
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
3
,7

2
2
,1

4
7

$
  

  
  

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 t

a
x
e
s

8
2
,2

7
4

-
8
2
,2

7
4

F
ra

n
c
h
is

e
 a

n
d
 m

is
c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 t

a
x
e
s

2
,2

1
5
,4

5
5

-
2
,2

1
5
,4

5
5

9
1
1
 t

a
x
e
s

3
0
5
,6

0
3

-
3
0
5
,6

0
3

H
o
te

l/
m

o
te

l 
ta

x
e
s

1
,7

0
0
,4

9
7

-
1
,7

0
0
,4

9
7

In
te

rg
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
ta

l 
re

ve
n
u
e
 n

o
t 

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t

o
 s

p
e
c
ifi

c
 p

ro
g
ra

m
s

3
9
9
,7

8
7

-
3
9
9
,7

8
7

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
 i
n
ve

s
tm

e
n
t 

e
a
rn

in
g
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 f
a
ir
 m

a
rk

e
t 

va
lu

e
 o

f 
in

ve
s
tm

e
n
ts

1
9
2
,3

9
1

2
2
3
,1

9
6

4
1
5
,5

8
7

M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s

2
,4

2
2
,0

2
4

2
9
,3

2
2

2
,4

5
1
,3

4
6

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
(1

,2
0
9
,4

9
6
)

1
,2

0
9
,4

9
6

-

T
o
ta

l 
g
e
n
e
ra

l 
re

ve
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rs
3
9
,8

3
0
,6

8
2

1
,4

6
2
,0

1
4

4
1
,2

9
2
,6

9
6

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 n

e
t 

p
o
s
it
io

n
8
,9

0
3
,1

0
6

7
,2

2
2
,6

9
6

1
6
,1

2
5
,8

0
2

N
e
t 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 -

 b
e
g
in

n
in

g
9
1
,4

5
0
,7

2
2

6
5
,7

2
1
,0

9
3

1
5
7
,1

7
1
,8

1
5

N
e
t 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 -

 e
n
d
in

g
1
0
0
,3

5
3
,8

2
8

$
 

7
2
,9

4
3
,7

8
9

$
  

1
7
3
,2

9
7
,6

1
7

$
  

  

N
e

t 
(E

x
p

e
n

se
) 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 a

n
d

 C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
in

 N
e

t 
P

o
s
it

io
n

S
ee

 a
cc

o
m

p
an

y
in

g
 n

o
te

s 
to

 t
h

e 
b

as
ic

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.



CITY OF ARDMORE, OKLAHOMA 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2023  

21

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 A

R
D

M
O

R
E

, 
O

K
L

A
H

O
M

A

A
N

N
U

A
L

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T

A
s 

o
f 

a
n

d
 f

o
r
 t

h
e
 Y

ea
r
 E

n
d

e
d

 J
u

n
e 

3
0

, 
2

0
2

3
  

2
2

G
o

v
er

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

F
u

n
d

s 
B

a
la

n
ce

 S
h

ee
t 

- 
J

u
n

e
 3

0
, 
2

0
2

3

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 F

u
n

d
s

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

je
c

t 

F
u

n
d

D
e

b
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

F
u

n
d

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

E
n

h
a

n
c

e
m

e
n

t 

F
u

n
d

F
A

A
 G

ra
n

t 
F

u
n

d

L
ib

ra
ry

 T
ru

s
t 

F
u

n
d

G
A

P
S

 T
a

x
 C

it
y

S
tr

e
e

t 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

F
u

n
d

T
IF

 2

O
th

e
r 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

F
u

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

F
u

n
d

s

A
S

S
E

T
S

C
a

s
h

 a
n
d

 c
a

s
h

 e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

4
,5

0
0

,2
0
4

$
  

  
  

  
7

9
6
,2

0
1

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

0
,7

6
8

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

2
,9

5
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
7

1
7
,8

1
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
4

8
0

,5
0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
4

8
2
,2

7
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
2
,4

5
0

,3
5

9
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
9

,4
5
1

,0
7

0
$
  

  
  

  

In
ve

s
tm

e
n

ts
1

8
,5

0
7

,9
7
8

4
,7

5
1
,8

0
4

-
4
,6

1
1

,8
9
8

4
,2

8
4
,1

5
0

2
,8

6
7

,8
1
2

2
,8

8
2
,8

2
9

5
,2

3
1

,9
0

7
4
3

,1
3
8

,3
7

8

R
e

c
e

iv
a

b
le

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
g

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
ts

2
,8

9
9

,0
3
7

5
0

6
,7

0
7

-
-

5
0

6
,7

0
7

5
0
6

,7
0
7

-
2
9

0
,5

2
9

4
,7

0
9

,6
8

7

D
u

e
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

fu
n
d

s
2
2

6
,9

9
1

-
-

-
-

2
6

,7
2
9

-
2
0

4
,8

3
1

4
5
8

,5
5

1

O
th

e
r 

ta
x
e

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
a

b
le

, 
n

e
t

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1

6
6
,7

3
6

1
6
6

,7
3
6

C
o
u

rt
 f
in

e
s

 r
e

c
e

iv
a
b

le
, 

n
e

t
2
3

6
,2

8
4

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
2

3
6

,2
8
4

O
th

e
r 

re
c

e
iv

a
b

le
s

2
8

,5
8

7
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

2
8

,5
8
7

P
re

p
a

id
 e

x
p

e
n
s

e
s

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1

0
0
,1

2
5

1
0

0
,1

2
5

In
ve

n
to

ri
e

s
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

3
3
,4

3
6

3
3

,4
3
6

L
e
a

s
e
s

 r
e
c

e
iv

a
b
le

7
,8

1
9

-
-

-
-

-
-

8
1
4

,0
6

7
8
2

1
,8

8
6

T
o

ta
l 
a

s
s
e

ts
2
6

,4
0

6
,9

0
0

$
  

  
  

6
,0

5
4

,7
1
2

$
  

  
  

  
1

0
,7

6
8

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

,6
2

4
,8

5
4

$
  

  
  

  
5

,5
0
8

,6
6
9

$
  

  
  

  
3
,8

8
1
,7

4
8

$
  

  
  

  
3

,3
6

5
,0

9
9

$
  

  
  

  
9

,2
9
1

,9
9

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
9
,1

4
4

,7
4

0
$

  
  

  

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S
, 

D
E

F
E

R
R

E
D

 I
N

F
L

O
W

S
, 

A
N

D
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S

L
ia

b
il
it

ie
s

:

A
c

c
o

u
n
ts

 p
a

y
a

b
le

 a
n
d

 a
c
c

ru
e

d
 l

ia
b

il
it
ie

s
9

2
5
,0

8
7

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

6
,2

6
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

0
,6

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
1

,1
0
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
7

2
,2

9
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
2
5

,6
3

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,2

9
0

,9
8

1
$

  
  

  
  

D
u
e

 t
o
 o

th
e

r 
fu

n
d

s
8

4
4

,3
8

0
-

4
8
9

-
-

3
,6

7
5

-
2

1
6

,3
6

3
1
,0

6
4
,9

0
7

D
u
e

 t
o
 b

o
n
d

h
o
ld

e
rs

7
,6

3
6

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
7

,6
3

6

D
u
e

 t
o
 o

th
e

r 
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

1
2

,1
3

3
1
2

,1
3

3

P
a

y
a
b

le
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
g

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ts
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

2
9

5
,0

1
4

2
9
5

,0
1
4

O
th

e
r 

p
a
y

a
b
le

s
1
,2

8
4
,2

6
6

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1

,2
8
4

,2
6
6

T
o

ta
l 

li
a
b

il
it

ie
s

3
,0

6
1
,3

6
9

1
6

,2
6

2
2
1

,0
8

9
-

3
1
,1

0
6

7
5

,9
7
1

-
7

4
9
,1

4
0

3
,9

5
4

,9
3
7

D
e
fe

rr
e

d
 I

n
fl
o

w
s

 o
f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

:

U
n

a
va

il
a

b
le

 r
e

ve
n

u
e

1
7

9
,0

4
9

-
-

-
-

-
-

1
,0

7
9

1
8
0

,1
2
8

D
e

fe
rr

e
d

 i
n

fl
o
w

s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 l

e
a
s

e
s

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
9

7
5
,4

3
3

9
7

5
,4

3
3

T
o

ta
l 
in

fl
o

w
s

 o
f 
re

a
o

u
rc

e
s

1
7

9
,0

4
9

-
-

-
-

-
-

9
7

6
,5

1
2

1
,1

5
5

,5
6
1

F
u
n

d
 b

a
la

n
c

e
s

:

R
e
s

tr
ic

te
d

1
1
,4

6
7

5
,6

8
7

,9
5
2

-
4

,6
2

4
,8

5
4

5
,1

3
4

,3
6
3

2
,8

1
8
,2

9
9

3
,0

4
3

,3
0
5

5
,9

8
3

,3
6

3
2

7
,3

0
3

,6
0
3

A
s
s

ig
n

e
d

1
6

,7
1

3
,2

3
0

3
5
0

,4
9
8

-
-

3
4
3

,2
0

0
9
8

7
,4

7
8

3
2
1

,7
9
4

1
,7

1
3

,3
4

4
2

0
,4

2
9

,5
4
4

U
n
a

s
s
ig

n
e

d
 (

d
e

fi
c

it
)

6
,4

4
1
,7

8
5

-
(1

0
,3

2
1

)
-

-
-

-
(1

3
0

,3
6

9
)

6
,3

0
1

,0
9
5

T
o

ta
l 
fu

n
d

 b
a
la

n
c

e
s

2
3

,1
6

6
,4

8
2

6
,0

3
8

,4
5
0

(1
0

,3
2
1

)
4

,6
2

4
,8

5
4

5
,4

7
7

,5
6
3

3
,8

0
5
,7

7
7

3
,3

6
5

,0
9
9

7
,5

6
6

,3
3

8
5

4
,0

3
4

,2
4

2

T
o
ta

l 
li
a

b
il
it

ie
s

, 
d

e
fe

rr
e

d
 i

n
fl
o

w
s

, 
a

n
d
 f

u
n
d

 b
a

la
n
c

e
s

2
6

,4
0

6
,9

0
0

$
  

  
  

6
,0

5
4

,7
1
2

$
  

  
  

  
1

0
,7

6
8

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

,6
2

4
,8

5
4

$
  

  
  

  
5

,5
0
8

,6
6
9

$
  

  
  

  
3
,8

8
1
,7

4
8

$
  

  
  

  
3

,3
6

5
,0

9
9

$
  

  
  

  
9

,2
9
1

,9
9

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
9
,1

4
4

,7
4

0
$

  
  

  

S
ee

 a
cc

o
m

p
an

y
in

g
 n

o
te

s 
to

 t
h

e 
b

as
ic

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 A

R
D

M
O

R
E

, 
O

K
L

A
H

O
M

A

A
N

N
U

A
L

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T

A
s 

o
f 

a
n

d
 f

o
r
 t

h
e
 Y

ea
r
 E

n
d

e
d

 J
u

n
e 

3
0

, 
2

0
2

3
  

2
3

G
o

v
er

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

F
u

n
d

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t 
o

f 
R

e
v

en
u

e
s,

 E
x

p
e
n

d
it

u
re

s 
a

n
d

 C
h

a
n

g
e
s 

in
 F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
es

 –
 Y

e
a

r 
E

n
d

ed
 J

u
n

e
 3

0
, 
2

0
2

3

S
ee

 a
cc

o
m

p
an

y
in

g
 n

o
te

s 
to

 t
h

e 
b

as
ic

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.



CITY OF ARDMORE, OKLAHOMA 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2023  

24

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements: 

Total fund balance, governmental funds 54,034,242$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position 

are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial 

resources and therefore are not reported in this  fund financial statement, but 

are reported in the governmental activities of the Statement of Net Position, 

net of accumulated depreciation of $99,404,975 51,309,518

Other long-term assets are not available to pay current period expenditures 

and therefore are either not reported, or deferred in the funds:

Grants receivable 3,879

Court fines receivable 171,112

Leases receivable 173,317

Intangible asset-SBITAs 134,977

Net pension asset 646,823

Deferred outflows are not current financial resources and, therefore are not 

reported in the fund financial statement, but are included in the governmental 

activities of the Statement of Net Position:

Pension related deferred outflows 7,074,332

OPEB related deferred outflows 559,365

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain 

activities, such as insurance, to individual funds.  A portion of the assets and 

liabilities of the internal service fund is included in governmental activities in 

the Statement of Net Position.

Net position of the Internal Service Funds 596,549

Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable from current resources, 

and therefore they, along with deferred inflows, are not reported in the funds:

Net pension liability (8,880,191)

Pension related deferred inflows (1,009,799)

Total OPEB Liability (1,851,528)

OPEB related deferred inflows (1,123,650)

Lease liabilities (174,261)

Suscription liabilities-SBITAs (135,768)

Accrued compensated absences (1,175,089)

Net Position of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position 100,353,828$     

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 



CITY OF ARDMORE, OKLAHOMA 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2023  

25

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements: 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: 10,599,383$       

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities 

are different because:

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets as expenditures 

because such outlays use current financial resources.  In contrast,  the 

Statement of Activities reports only a portion of the outlay as expense.  The 

outlay is allocated over the assets' estimated useful lives as depreciation 

expense for the period.

   Capital asset purchases capitalized 4,884,007

   Depreciation expense (4,870,379)

   Contributed capital 351,863

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial 

resources are not reported as revenues in the funds:

Change in unavailable revenue (2,217,661)

In the Statement of Activities, the net cost of pension benefits earned is 

calculated and reported as pension expense.  The fund financial statements 

report pension contributions as pension expenditures. This amount 

represents the difference between pension contributions and calculated 

pension expense. 569,908

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of 

certain activities, such as insurance to individual funds.  A portion of the 

change in net position of the internal service funds is included in 

governmental activities in the Statement of Activities.

Total change in net position of the internal service funds (598,898)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the 

use of current financial resources and these are not reported as 

expenditures in governmental funds: 

Change in Total OPEB Liability 278,789

Change in accrued compensated absences (92,588)

Change in Lease Liability (527)

Change in Subscription Liability-SBITA (791)
Change in net position of governmental activities 8,903,106$         

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Position - June 30, 2023 

Ardmore Solid 

Waste Authority

Sanitation 

Enterprise

Wastewater 

Enterprise

Water 

Enterprise

Other 

Enterprise 

Funds Total

Internal Service 

Funds

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 878,760$           1,340,765$         1,757,452$      74,269$          4,051,246$         325,033$            

Restricted cash and cash equivalents - - 4,950,073 - 4,950,073 -

Investments 5,244,281 8,001,944 10,531,894 443,272 24,221,391 487,599

Accounts receivable, net of allowance 657,607 867,655 1,175,998 - 2,701,260 89,997

Due from other funds 32,654 241,113 246,118 - 519,885 245,673

Inventories - - 332,389 - 332,389 22,601

Total current assets 6,813,302 10,451,477 18,993,924 517,541 36,776,244 1,170,903

Non-current assets:

Land and construction in progress - 285,520 163,006 - 448,526 -

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 987,471 22,235,474 25,278,240 612,979 49,114,164 -

Total non-current assets 987,471 22,520,994 25,441,246 612,979 49,562,690 -

Total assets 7,800,773$        32,972,471$       44,435,170$    1,130,520$     86,338,934$       1,170,903$         

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amount related to pensions 407,256 389,341 818,008 - 1,614,605 -

Deferred amount related to OPEB 72,732 71,431 107,606 - 251,769 25,249

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 479,988 460,772 925,614 - 1,866,374 25,249

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 66,682 725,393 302,021 879 1,094,975 43,272$             

Accrued interest payable - - 68,990 - 68,990 -

Due to other funds 39,550 883 2,038 - 42,471 116,731

Other payables - - 15,278 - 15,278 -

Due to employees - - - - - 41,211

Current portion of:

Compensated absences 7,710 5,345 16,014 - 29,069 3,252

Deposits subject to refund - - 84,226 - 84,226 -

Subscriptions payable - - 109,344 - 109,344 -

Notes payable - - 4,158,078 - 4,158,078 -

Total current liabilities 113,942 731,621 4,755,989 879 5,602,431 204,466

Non-current liabilities:

Compensated absences 69,392 48,104 144,124 - 261,620 29,272

Deposits subject to refund - - 336,904 - 336,904 -

Total OPEB liability 154,294 125,364 279,658 - 559,316 48,217

Net pension liability 57,686 51,394 116,959 - 226,039 -

Claims payable - - - - - 274,760

Subscriptions payable - - 82,264 - 82,264 -

Notes payable - - 7,326,267 - 7,326,267 -

Total non-current liabilities 281,372 224,862 8,286,176 - 8,792,410 352,249

Total liabilities 395,314 956,483 13,042,165 879 14,394,841 556,715

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amounts related to pensions 101,861 89,666 197,730 - 389,257 -

Deferred amounts related to OPEB 121,956 171,064 184,401 - 477,421 42,888

Total deferred inflows of resources 223,817 260,730 382,131 - 866,678 42,888

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 987,471 22,520,994 13,956,901 614,578 38,079,944 -

Unrestricted 6,674,159 9,695,036 17,979,587 515,063 34,863,845 596,549

Total net position 7,661,630$        32,216,030$       31,936,488$    1,129,641$     72,943,789$       596,549$            

Ardmore Public Works Authority

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Year Ended 

June 30, 2023 

Ardmore 

Solid Waste 

Authority

Sanitation 

Enterprise

Wastewater 

Enterprise

Water 

Enterprise

Other 

Enterprise 

Funds Total

Internal Service 

Funds

REVENUES

Water - - 8,797,611 - 8,797,611$         -

Wastewater - 5,716,431 - - 5,716,431 -

Sanitation 4,840,336 - - - 4,840,336 -

Golf - - - 675,269 675,269 -

Self insurance charges - - - - - 5,685,380

Miscellaneous - 6,110 6,410 14,316 26,836 -

Total operating revenues 4,840,336 5,722,541 8,804,021 689,585 20,056,483 5,685,380

OPERATING EXPENSES

Water - - 4,041,156 - 4,041,156 -

Wastewater - 2,052,427 - - 2,052,427 -

Sanitation 2,469,299 - - - 2,469,299 -

Administration - - 8,789 - 8,789 6,287,689

Golf operations - - - 604,085 604,085 -

Depreciation and amortization 391,492 2,314,077 2,093,092 55,560 4,854,221 -

Total Operating Expenses 2,860,791 4,366,504 6,143,037 659,645 14,029,977 6,287,689

Operating income (loss) 1,979,545 1,356,037 2,660,984 29,940 6,026,506 (602,309)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest and investment revenue 20,229 29,131 172,669 1,167 223,196 3,411

Miscellaneous revenue 78 7,328 323 - 7,729 -

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 7,495 - 14,098 - 21,593 -

Interest expense - - (265,824) - (265,824) -

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 27,802 36,459 (78,734) 1,167 (13,306) 3,411

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 2,007,347 1,392,496 2,582,250 31,107 6,013,200 (598,898)

Capital contributions - 127,320 918,754 - 1,046,074 -

Transfers in - 1,970,702 5,492,974 130,000 7,593,676 -

Transfers out (2,000,000) (3,063,627) (2,366,627) - (7,430,254) -

Change in net position 7,347 426,891 6,627,351 161,107 7,222,696 (598,898)

Total net position - beginning 7,654,283 31,789,139 25,309,137 968,534 65,721,093 1,195,447

Total net position - ending 7,661,630$     32,216,030$       31,936,488$   1,129,641$     72,943,789$       596,549$            

Ardmore Public Works Authority

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Ardmore Solid 

Waste Authority

Sanitation 

Enterprise

Wastewater 

Enterprise

Water 

Enterprise

Other Enterprise 

Funds Total

Internal 

Service 

Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers 4,726,879$         5,519,040$         8,448,761$         689,585$            19,384,265$       5,696,763$    

Receipts (payments) from (to) other funds 1,107 (4,874) (3,719) - (7,486) (17,386)

Payments to suppliers (1,425,702) (467,713) (1,735,684) (603,670) (4,232,769) (615,052)

Payments to employees (1,070,077) (1,009,493) (2,217,920) - (4,297,490) (435,498)

Claims and judgements paid - - - - - (5,239,475)

Receipts of customer meter deposits - - 145,930 - 145,930 -

Refunds of customer meter deposits - - (110,955) - (110,955) -

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,232,207 4,036,960 4,526,413 85,915 10,881,495 (610,648)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers from other funds - 1,970,702 5,493,909 130,000 7,594,611 -

Transfers to other funds (2,000,000) (3,063,627) (2,367,562) - (7,431,189) -

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities (2,000,000) (1,092,925) 3,126,347 130,000 163,422 -

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

   FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal paid on debt - - (4,068,113) - (4,068,113) -

Interest and fiscal agent fees paid on debt - - (288,067) - (288,067) -

Purchase of capital assets (188,206) (2,024,635) (1,373,311) - (3,586,152) -

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 7,495 - 14,098 - 21,593 -

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (180,711) (2,024,635) (5,715,393) - (7,920,739) -

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Sale (purchase) of investments (5,244,281) (8,001,944) (10,531,894) (443,272) (24,221,391) (487,599)

Interest and dividends 20,229 29,131 172,669 1,167 223,196 3,411

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (5,224,052) (7,972,813) (10,359,225) (442,105) (23,998,195) (484,188)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (5,172,556) (7,053,413) (8,421,858) (226,190) (20,874,017) (1,094,836)

Balances - beginning of year 6,051,316 8,394,178 15,129,383 300,459 29,875,336 1,419,869

Balances - end of year 878,760$            1,340,765$         6,707,525$         74,269$             9,001,319$         325,033$      

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:

Cash and cash equivalents 878,760$            1,340,765$         1,757,452$         74,269$             4,051,246$         325,033$      

Restricted cash and cash equivalents - current - - 4,950,073 - 4,950,073 -

Total cash and cash equivalents, end of year 878,760$            1,340,765$         6,707,525$         74,269$             9,001,319$         325,033$      

Ardmore Public Works Authority

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30, 2023, (Continued) 

Ardmore Solid 

Waste Authority

Sanitation 

Enterprise

Wastewater 

Enterprise

Water 

Enterprise

Other Enterprise 

Funds Total

Internal 

Service 

Funds

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)

  Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss) 1,979,545$         1,356,037$         2,660,984$         29,940$             6,026,506$         (602,309)$     

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by

   (used in) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 391,492 2,314,077 2,093,092 55,560 4,854,221 -

Other non-operating revenues 78 7,328 323 - 7,729 -

Change in assets, liabilities and deferrals:

Receivables, net (113,535) (210,829) (355,583) - (679,947) -

Inventory - - (33,116) - (33,116) 1,719

Due from other funds - (5,757) (5,757) - (11,514) (17,888)

Other receivables - - - - - 11,383

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 18,478 626,844 17,089 415 662,826 (14,451)

Customer meter deposits payable - - 34,975 - 34,975 -

Due to other funds 1,107 883 2,038 - 4,028 502

Due to employees - - - - - (975)

Other payable - - 191,808 - 191,808 -

Claims payable - - - - - 17,888

Total OPEB liability (71,139) (148,376) (171,207) - (390,722) (48,397)

Accrued compensated absences 8,023 (11,070) 18,924 - 15,877 534

Net pension liability 633,421 693,787 1,333,956 - 2,661,164 -

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources (615,263) (585,964) (1,261,113) - (2,462,340) 41,346

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,232,207$         4,036,960$         4,526,413$         85,915$             10,881,495$       (610,648)$     

Noncash activities:

Contributed capital assets -$                   127,320$            918,754$            -$                   1,046,074$         -$             

-$                   127,320$            918,754$            -$                   1,046,074$         -$             

Ardmore Public Works Authority

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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FOOTNOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Footnotes to the Basic Financial Statements: 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A.  Financial Reporting Entity 

 The City’s financial reporting entity is comprised of the primary government (City of Ardmore), two 
blended component units, and six discretely presented component units as noted below.   

In determining the financial reporting entity, except as noted below, the City complies with the provisions 
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 14, 34, and 39 and includes all component 
units for which the City is financially accountable. 

The City of Ardmore – that provides the public safety, streets, culture and recreation, cemetery, airport, 
economic development and administrative activities. 

The City of Ardmore, Oklahoma, is a charter city operating under a Commission-Manager form of 
government authorized by the charter and Title 11 of the Oklahoma statutes. The governing body of the 
City is the Commission comprised of five elected members who designate one member to serve as mayor. 
The appointed City Manager is the administrative head of the City. 

The City of Ardmore has a population of approximately 24,725 located in southern Oklahoma.  The City is 
a Commission/Manager form of government that provides for three branches of government: 

� Legislative – the City Commission is the governing body elected by the citizens  

� Executive – the City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer and is appointed by the City 
Commission 

� Judicial – the Municipal Judge is a practicing attorney appointed by the City Commission 

The City and its Trusts provide typical municipal services such as public safety, street maintenance, culture, 
parks and recreation, airport, and certain utility services including water, wastewater, sanitation and golf.  

Blended Component Units: 

� The City of Ardmore Public Works Authority – that operates the water and sewer services of 
the City. 

� The Ardmore Solid Waste Authority – that operates the sanitation services of the City. 

Discretely Presented Component Unit (excluded from the reporting entity): 

� Ardmore Animal Care Authority - operates for the benefit of the Ardmore Animal Shelter.  The 
City subsidizes the operations of the animal care authority.  The component unit’s financial activity 
is not included due to reporting on a different financial reporting framework than the City. 

� Ardmore Regional Park Authority - established for the development and operation of a regional 
park facility. The City provides significant funding of operations for the park authority.  The 
component unit’s financial activity is not included due to reporting on a different financial reporting 
framework than the City. 
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� Hardy Murphy Coliseum Authority - operates the activities of the Hardy Murphy Coliseum.  The 
City provides significant funding for capital improvements and operations.  The component unit’s 
financial activity is not included due to reporting on a different financial reporting framework than 
the City. 

� Ardmore Tourism Authority - established for the development of tourism in the Ardmore area. 
The City receives and transfers to this Authority a hotel/motel tax of 5 percent.  The component 
unit’s financial activity is not included due to reporting on a different financial reporting framework 
than the City. 

� Ardmore Development Authority - established to promote industrial development in the 
Ardmore area. The City receives and transfers to this Authority a dedicated sales tax of ¼ percent.  
The component unit’s financial activity is not included due to reporting on a different financial 
reporting framework than the City. 

� Ardmore Main Street Authority - established to preserve and improve the historical value of the 
downtown Ardmore area.  The component unit’s financial activity is also excluded. 

Discretely presented component units of the City issue separately audited Component Unit Financial 
Statements. Copies of those financial statements may be obtained from the City's accounting department. 

Each of these component units are Public Trusts established pursuant to Title 60 of Oklahoma State law.  
Public Trusts (Authorities) have no taxing power.  The Authorities are generally created to finance City 
services through issuance of revenue bonds or other non-general obligation debt and to enable the City 
Commission to delegate certain functions to the governing body (Trustees) of the Authority.  The 
Authorities generally retain title to assets which are acquired or constructed with Authority debt or other 
Authority generated resources.  In addition, the City has leased certain existing assets at the creation for the 
Authorities to the Trustees on a long-term basis. The City, as beneficiary of the Public Trusts, receives title 
to any residual assets when a Public Trust is dissolved. 

B. Basis of Presentation and Accounting 

Government-Wide Financial Statements: 

 The statements of net position and activities are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic 
resources measurement focus.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned 
and expenses (including depreciation and amortization) are recorded when the liability is incurred or 
economic asset used.   

Program revenues within the Statement of Activities are derived directly from each activity or from parties 
outside of the City’s taxpayers.  The City has the following program revenues in each activity: 

� Public Safety – Fire, Police, Animal Control, and Civil Emergency Management – fines and 
forfeitures, fire run charges, on behalf payments made by the state, and restricted operating and 
capital grants. 

� Airport – rental fees, operating and capital grants. 

� Streets – Commercial vehicle and gasoline excise tax shared by the State, operating grants and 
other miscellaneous fees. 

� Culture and recreation – lake fees, pool fees, library fees, recreation fees, operating and capital 
grants.  
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� Cemetery – cemetery revenues. 

� General Government – licenses and permits, service fees, and restricted operating and capital 
grants. 

� Economic Development – rental income. 

� Utilities – water, wastewater and sanitation. 

All other governmental revenues are reported as general.  All taxes are classified as general revenue even 
if restricted for a specific purpose. 

Governmental Funds: 

The City’s governmental funds include: 

Major Funds: 

� General Fund – accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Funds: 

� Community Enhancement Fund - accounts for a .50 cent sales tax to be used for police protection, 
fire safety, auditorium renovation, coliseum renovation, industrial growth, parks and recreation 
improvement and general government. 

� FAA Grant Fund – accounts for grant funds received from FAA for airport operations and capital 
projects. 

� Library Trust Fund – accounts for the activities of the bequests found in the wills of two Ardmore 
citizens.  

� GAPS Tax City Fund – accounts for a .25 cent sales tax to be used for the construction and 
rehabilitation of City owned streets, facilities, water and wastewater infrastructure and police and 
fire capital needs. 

Capital Project Fund: 

� Street Improvement Fund – accounts for a .50 cent sales tax to be used for street improvements for 
the City of Ardmore. 

Debt Service Funds: 

� TIF 2 Fund – accounts for the tax increment revenues used to pay debt service TIF revenue notes. 

Aggregated Non-Major Funds (reported as Other Governmental Funds): 

Special Revenue Funds: 

� Other Police Grants Fund – accounts for revenues received from various grants to be used for police 
purposes. 

� Street and Alley Fund - accounts for state shared gasoline excise and commercial vehicle taxes 
legally restricted for street and alley purposes. 

� Library State Grant Fund – accounts for revenues received from the State to be used for library 
activities. 

� Historical Grant Fund – accounts for grant revenues to be used for preservation, development, 
protection and maintenance of historical districts and structures. 
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� Pass Thru Grants Fund – accounts for miscellaneous grant revenues and expenditures. 

� Mayor’s Anti-Crime Fund – accounts for donations received from the Chickasaw Indian Nation 
to be used to combat crime and drug related crimes. 

� Homeland Security Grant Fund – accounts for grant revenues to be used for various homeland 
security activities. 

� JAG LLEB Grant Fund – accounts for various grants to be used for law enforcement activities. 

� ADA Industrial Fund – accounts for a .25 cent sales tax to be used for economic development 
activities to be administered by the Ardmore Development Authority. 

� Convention Tourism Fund – accounts for hotel/motel tax revenues set aside for the Ardmore 
Tourism Authority to be used for purposes of a conference center. 

� Literacy Grant Fund – accounts for grant funds received for library operations and capital 
expenditures. 

� FEMA DR 4222 – accounts for grant revenues received for disaster emergencies. 

Capital Project Funds: 

� Hazard Mitigation Fund – accounts for grant monies received from FEMA for various projects. 

� Fire Capital Fund – accounts for donations and fire surcharges to be used for fire capital 
purchases. 

� Downtown Executive Airport Fund – accounts for hanger rent and airport grants to be used for 
maintenance of the airport and various airport capital projects. 

� Capital Improvement Fund – accounts for dividends paid on oil well leases to be used for 
various capital projects. 

� Cemetery Care Fund – accounts for the transfer of 25% of revenue from cemetery lot sales and 
interment fees, which, with the exception of interest earnings, may only be used to purchase 
additional land and for major capital improvements to the cemetery.  Interest earnings in the 
fund can be used for improving, caring for and embellishing lots, walks, drives, parks and other 
necessary improvements. 

� Library Capital Improvement Fund – accounts for interest earned from investment of idle funds 
in various investments and any additional monies bequest to the library from citizens to be used 
for library capital improvements. 

� Clubhouse Fund – accounts for revenues and expenditures related to the construction of the 
new Family Entertainment Center. 

� SW Park Project – accounts for donations received to be used for park improvements. 

� Valley Ranch Road Assessment Fund – accounts for activities of a special assessment district. 

Debt Service Fund: 

� Debt Service Fund – accounts for ad-valorem taxes levied by the City for use in retiring court-
assessed judgments and general obligation bonds and their related interest expense.  In State 
Statutes this fund is referred to as the Sinking Fund. 

The governmental funds are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting and current financial 
resources measurement focus. On the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when 
earned and measurable and available to pay current financial obligations, while expenditures are recorded 
when incurred and normally payable from current financial resources. The City defines revenue availability 
as collected within 60 days of period end. 

The reconciliation of the governmental funds financial statements to the governmental activities 
presentation in the government-wide financial statements is the result of the use of the accrual basis of 
accounting and economic resources measurement focus at the government-wide level. 
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The General Fund, Community Enhancement Fund, FAA Grant Fund, Library Trust Fund, GAPS Tax City 
Fund, Street Improvement Fund and TIF 2 Fund are considered major funds and therefore are displayed in 
separate columns. All other governmental funds are considered non-major funds and are aggregated under 
the column titled Other Governmental Funds.  

Proprietary Funds: 

When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these services are generally reported in 
proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds 
are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public.  Internal service funds are 
used to account for business-type activities provided within the government.  Proprietary funds are reported 
on the accrual basis of accounting and current financial resources measurement focus. For example, 
proprietary fund capital assets are capitalized and depreciated and principal payments on long-term debt 
are recorded as a reduction to the liability. 

The City’s enterprise funds include the following major funds: 

Ardmore Solid Waste Authority: 

� Sanitation Enterprise Fund – that operates the sanitation services. 

Ardmore Public Works Authority: 

� Wastewater Enterprise Fund – that operates the wastewater services. 

� Water Enterprise Fund – that operates the water services. 

The Lakeview Golf Course Fund and Golf Course Building Fund are considered non-major funds and are 
reported under a separate column entitled Other Enterprise Funds. 

The City’s internal service funds include the following: 

� Garage Fund – accounts for the activities of providing automotive and machinery maintenance and 
repair services to the City. 

� Employee Benefit Fund – accounts for the activities of providing payroll benefits to the employees 
of the City (health, dental and vision insurance coverage). 

The proprietary funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and current financial resources 
measurement focus.   

For purposes of the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position, operating revenues 
and expenses are considered those whose cash flows are related to operating activities, while revenues and 
expenses related to financing, capital and investing activities are reported as non-operating or transfers and 
contributions. 
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C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactions are recorded within the various financial 
statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement 
focus applied. 

Measurement Focus 

On the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities both governmental and 
business-like activities are presented using the current financial resources measurement focus as defined in 
item b. below.  

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the “economic 
resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

a.  All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus.  Only current financial 
assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets.  Their operating statements present sources 
and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period.  These funds use fund balance as 
their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.  

b.  The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources" measurement focus.  The accounting objectives of 
this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), 
financial position, and cash flows.  All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with 
their activities are reported.  Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position. 

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities both governmental and 
business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or 
economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and 
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable and 
available".  Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount.  Available means 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter (within 60 days of period end) to pay current 
liabilities.  Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, 
except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are reported when due. 

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues 
are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. 
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D.  Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows, and Equity 

Cash and Investments

For the purposes of the statements of net position, balance sheets, and statement of cash flows, "cash and cash 
equivalents" includes all demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit or short-term investments with 
an original maturity of three months or less.  Revenue bond and promissory note trust account investments in 
open-ended mutual fund shares are also considered cash equivalents and are reported at the funds’ current 
share prices.  

The City has a written investment policy that limits its investment choices to the limitations stated in the 
Oklahoma Statutes. Oklahoma Statutes allow the City to invest in bonds of cities, school districts, or 
counties within the State of Oklahoma; public trust bonds whose beneficiary is a county, municipality or 
school district, except industrial development bonds; direct obligations of the United States; and certificates 
of deposit. Public trusts created under O.S. Title 60, are not subject to the above investment limitations and 
are primarily governed by any restrictions in their trust or note indenture and investment policy. 

Investments consist of non-negotiable certificates of deposit whose original maturity term exceeds three 
months.  These non-negotiable certificates of deposit are carried at cost.  Marketable investments are carried 
at fair value.  

Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. 
Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, grants, 
police fines, and hotel/motel taxes.  Business-type activities report utilities as its major receivables. 

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such as 
sales tax, franchise tax, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both 
measurable and available.  Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund 
financial statements in accordance with modified accrual, but not deferred in the government-wide financial 
statements in accordance with the accrual basis.  Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned 
only if paid within 60 days since they would be considered both measurable and available.  Proprietary fund 
material receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received.  Utility accounts 
receivable comprise the majority of proprietary fund receivables.  Allowances for uncollectible accounts 
receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. 

Inventories 

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of governmental 
funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the assets 
are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the 
government-wide or fund financial statements. 



39CG ?6 1A4=?A5$ ?;<18?=1

1>>D1< 69>1>391< A5@?AC

1Z VM HUK MVY [OL GLHY 5UKLK :\UL +($ *(*+

/5

Government-Wide Statements

@[ aUR T\cR_[ZR[a)dVQR SV[N[PVNY `aNaRZR[a`( PN]VaNY N``Ra` N_R NPP\b[aRQ S\_ N` PN]VaNY N``Ra`* 8YY PN]VaNY
N``Ra` N_R cNYbRQ Na UV`a\_VPNY P\`a( \_ R`aVZNaRQ UV`a\_VPNY P\`a VS NPabNY V` b[NcNVYNOYR( RePR]a S\_ Q\[NaRQ
PN]VaNY N``Ra` dUVPU N_R _RP\_QRQ Na aURV_ NP^bV`VaV\[ cNYbR Na aUR QNaR \S Q\[NaV\[*

;R]_RPVNaV\[ \S NYY ReUNb`aVOYR PN]VaNY N``Ra` V` _RP\_QRQ N` N[ NYY\PNaRQ Re]R[`R V[ aUR HaNaRZR[a \S 8PaVcVaVR`(
dVaU NPPbZbYNaRQ QR]_RPVNaV\[ _RSYRPaRQ V[ aUR HaNaRZR[a \S DRa F\`VaV\[* ;R]_RPVNaV\[ V` ]_\cVQRQ \cR_ aUR
N``Ra`% R`aVZNaRQ b`RSbY YVcR` b`V[T aUR `a_NVTUa)YV[R ZRaU\Q \S QR]_RPVNaV\[* 8 PN]VaNYVgNaV\[ aU_R`U\YQ \S
"-(,,, V` b`RQ a\ _R]\_a PN]VaNY N``Ra`* IUR _N[TR \S R`aVZNaRQ b`RSbY YVcR` Of af]R \S N``Ra V` N` S\YY\d`6

) 9bVYQV[T` 1, fRN_`
) 9bVYQV[T @Z]_\cRZR[a` ., fRN_`
) FbOYVP ;\ZNV[ @[S_N`a_bPab_R 1, fRN_`
) Hf`aRZ @[S_N`a_bPab_R /, fRN_`
) KRUVPYR` /)1 fRN_`
) ESSVPR N[Q :\Z]baR_ <^bV]ZR[a 1 fRN_`
) CNPUV[R_f N[Q <^bV]ZR[a -, fRN_`

@[aN[TVOYR YRN`RQ N``Ra` N_R NZ\_aVgRQ \cR_ aUR YVSR \S aUR N``\PVNaRQ P\[a_NPa* HbO`P_V]aV\[)ON`RQ V[S\_ZNaV\[
aRPU[\Y\Tf N__N[TRZR[a N``Ra` N_R NZ\_aVgRQ \cR_ aUR `U\_aR_ \S b`RSbY YVSR \_ aUR aR_Z \S aUR N``\PVNaRQ
P\[a_NPa*

Fund Financial Statements

@[ aUR Sb[Q SV[N[PVNY `aNaRZR[a`( PN]VaNY N``Ra` b`RQ V[ T\cR_[ZR[aNY Sb[Q \]R_NaV\[` N_R NPP\b[aRQ S\_ N`
PN]VaNY \baYNf Re]R[QVab_R` \S aUR T\cR_[ZR[aNY Sb[Q b]\[ NP^bV`VaV\[* :N]VaNY N``Ra` b`RQ V[ ]_\]_VRaN_f Sb[Q
\]R_NaV\[` N_R NPP\b[aRQ S\_ aUR `NZR N` V[ aUR T\cR_[ZR[a)dVQR`aNaRZR[a`*

ALZ[YPJ[LK 1ZZL[Z

GR`a_VPaRQ N``Ra` V[PYbQR PN`U N[Q V[cR`aZR[a` \S aUR ]_\]_VRaN_f Sb[Q` aUNa N_R YRTNYYf _R`a_VPaRQ N` a\ aURV_
b`R* IUR ]_VZN_f _R`a_VPaRQ N``Ra` N_R _RYNaRQ a\ ]_\ZV``\_f [\aR a_b`aRR NPP\b[a` N[Q baVYVaf ZRaR_ QR]\`Va`*

<VUN%CLYT 4LI[

IUR NPP\b[aV[T a_RNaZR[a \S Y\[T)aR_Z QROa QR]R[Q` \[ dURaUR_ aUR N``Ra` N_R b`RQ V[ T\cR_[ZR[aNY Sb[Q
\]R_NaV\[` \_ ]_\]_VRaN_f Sb[Q \]R_NaV\[` N[Q dURaUR_ aURf N_R _R]\_aRQ V[ aUR T\cR_[ZR[a)dVQR \_ Sb[Q
SV[N[PVNY `aNaRZR[a`*

8YY Y\[T)aR_Z QROa a\ OR _R]NVQ S_\Z T\cR_[ZR[aNY N[Q Ob`V[R``)af]R _R`\b_PR` V` _R]\_aRQ N` YVNOVYVaVR` V[ aUR
T\cR_[ZR[a)dVQR `aNaRZR[a`* IUR Y\[T)aR_Z QROa P\[`V`a` \S [\aR` ]NfNOYR( PN]VaNY YRN`R \OYVTNaV\[` ]NfNOYR(
PYNVZ` ]NfNOYR( [Ra ]R[`V\[ YVNOVYVaVR`( \aUR_ ]\`a)RZ]Y\fZR[a OR[RSVa` N[Q NPP_bRQ P\Z]R[`NaRQ NO`R[PR`*
IUV` Y\[T)aR_Z QROa V` _R]\_aRQ [Ra \S b[NZ\_aVgRQ ]_RZVbZ` N[QQV`P\b[a`*

B\[T)aR_Z QROa S\_ T\cR_[ZR[aNY Sb[Q` V` [\a _R]\_aRQ N` YVNOVYVaVR` V[ aUR Sb[Q SV[N[PVNY `aNaRZR[a`* IUR QROa
]_\PRRQ` N_R _R]\_aRQ N` \aUR_ SV[N[PV[T `\b_PR` N[Q ]NfZR[a \S ]_V[PV]NY N[Q V[aR_R`a _R]\_aRQ N`
Re]R[QVab_R`* IUR NPP\b[aV[T S\_ aUR ]_\]_VRaN_f Sb[Q V` aUR `NZR V[ aUR Sb[Q `aNaRZR[a` N` Va V` V[ aUR
T\cR_[ZR[a)dVQR `aNaRZR[a`*



39CG ?6 1A4=?A5$ ?;<18?=1

1>>D1< 69>1>391< A5@?AC

1Z VM HUK MVY [OL GLHY 5UKLK :\UL +($ *(*+

0,

3VTWLUZH[LK 1IZLUJLZ

@a V` aUR T\cR_[ZR[ak` ]\YVPf a\ ]R_ZVa RZ]Y\fRR` a\ NPPbZbYNaR RN_[RQ Oba b[b`RQ cNPNaV\[ N[Q `VPX ]Nf
OR[RSVa`* IUR :Vaf Obf` ONPX NPPbZbYNaV\[` \S `VPX YRNcR \cR_ 3., U\b_` S\_ ]\YVPR N[Q NPPbZbYNaV\[` \cR_
52, U\b_` S\_ SV_R Na N QV`P\b[aRQ _NaR V[ AbYf \S RNPU fRN_* IUR :Vaf Obf` ONPX NPPbZbYNaV\[ \S `VPX YRNcR
\cR_ 3., S\_ [\[)ReRZ]a RZ]Y\fRR` V[ ;RPRZOR_ \S RNPU fRN_* IUR YVNOVYVaf S\_ aUR`R P\Z]R[`NaRQ NO`R[PR`
V` _RP\_QRQ N` Y\[T)aR_Z QROa V[ aUR T\cR_[ZR[a)dVQR `aNaRZR[a`* IUR Pb__R[a ]\_aV\[ \S aUV` QROa V` R`aVZNaRQ
ON`RQ \[ UV`a\_VPNY a_R[Q`* @[ aUR Sb[Q SV[N[PVNY `aNaRZR[a`( T\cR_[ZR[aNY Sb[Q` _R]\_a \[Yf aUR P\Z]R[`NaRQ
NO`R[PR YVNOVYVaf ]NfNOYR S_\Z Re]R[QNOYR NcNVYNOYR SV[N[PVNY _R`\b_PR`( dUVYR aUR ]_\]_VRaN_f Sb[Q` _R]\_a aUR
YVNOVYVaf N` Va V` V[Pb__RQ*

4LMLYYLK ?\[MSV^Z HUK 9UMSV^Z

;RSR__RQ \baSY\d` N[Q V[SY\d` N_R aUR P\[`bZ]aV\[ \_ NP^bV`VaV\[ \S [Ra ]\`VaV\[ Of aUR :Vaf aUNa N_R
N]]YVPNOYR a\ N Sbab_R _R]\_aV[T ]R_V\Q* 8a Ab[R /,( .,./( aUR :Vafk` QRSR__RQ \baSY\d` N[Q QRSR__RQ V[SY\d`
\S _R`\b_PR` dR_R P\Z]_V`RQ \S ]R[`V\[( EF<9 N[Q YRN`R _RYNaRQ QRSR__NY`* 8` ZR[aV\[RQ V[ D\aR -*?*(
PR_aNV[ ]R[`V\[ N[Q EF<9 NZ\b[a` N_R QRSR__RQ( `\ZR N` \baSY\d` N[Q \aUR_ N` V[SY\d`( NZ\_aVgRQ N` N
P\Z]\[R[a \S ]R[`V\[ N[Q V[`b_N[PR Re]R[`R V[ Sbab_R ]R_V\Q`*

BRN`R)_RYNaRQ NZ\b[a` N_R _RP\T[VgRQ Na aUR V[PR]aV\[ \S YRN`R` V[ dUVPU aUR :Vaf V` aUR YR``\_ N[Q N_R
_RP\_QRQ V[ N[ NZ\b[a R^bNY a\ aUR P\__R`]\[QV[T YRN`R _RPRVcNOYR ]Yb` PR_aNV[ NQQVaV\[NY NZ\b[a` _RPRVcRQ
S_\Z aUR YR``RR Na \_ ORS\_R aUR P\ZZR[PRZR[a \S aUR YRN`R aR_Z aUNa _RYNaR a\ Sbab_R ]R_V\Q`( YR`` N[f YRN`R
V[PR[aVcR` ]NVQ a\( \_ \[ ORUNYS \S( aUR YR``RR Na \_ ORS\_R aUR P\ZZR[PRZR[a \S aUR YRN`R aR_Z* IUR V[SY\d
\S _R`\b_PR` V` _RP\T[VgRQ V[ N `f`aRZNaVP N[Q _NaV\[NY ZN[[R_ \cR_ aUR aR_Z \S aUR YRN`R*

<LHZLZ

IUR :Vaf V` N ]N_af N` YR``\_ N[Q YR``RR S\_ cN_V\b` [\[PN[PRYYNOYR Y\[T)aR_Z YRN`R` \S YN[Q( ObVYQV[T` N[Q
R^bV]ZR[a* IUR P\__R`]\[QV[T YRN`R _RPRVcNOYR \_ YRN`R YVNOVYVaVR`( N_R _RP\_QRQ V[ N[ NZ\b[a R^bNY a\ aUR
]_R`R[a cNYbR \S aUR Re]RPaRQ Sbab_R ZV[VZbZ YRN`R ]NfZR[a` _RPRVcRQ \_ ]NVQ( _R`]RPaVcRYf( QV`P\b[aRQ Of
N[ N]]YVPNOYR V[aR_R`a _NaR*

5X\P[` 3SHZZPMPJH[PVUZ

Net Position6
DRa ]\`VaV\[ V` [\_ZNYYf _R]\_aRQ V[ aUR T\cR_[ZR[a)dVQR N[Q ]_\]_VRaN_f Sb[Q SV[N[PVNY `aNaRZR[a` N_R
QV`]YNfRQ V[ aU_RR P\Z]\[R[a`6

N* Net investment in capital assets ) :\[`V`a` \S PN]VaNY N``Ra` V[PYbQV[T _R`a_VPaRQ PN]VaNY N``Ra`( [Ra
\S NPPbZbYNaRQ QR]_RPVNaV\[ N[Q _RQbPRQ Of aUR \ba`aN[QV[T ONYN[PR` \S N[f O\[Q`( Z\_aTNTR`( [\aR`( \_
\aUR_ O\__\dV[T` aUNa N_R Naa_VObaNOYR a\ aUR NP^bV`VaV\[( P\[`a_bPaV\[( \_ VZ]_\cRZR[a` \S aU\`R N``Ra`*

O* Restricted net position ) :\[`V`a` \S [Ra ]\`VaV\[ dVaU P\[`a_NV[a` ]YNPRQ \[ aUR b`R RVaUR_ Of -'
ReaR_[NY T_\b]` `bPU N` P_RQVa\_`( T_N[a\_`( P\[a_VOba\_`( \_ YNd` N[Q _RTbYNaV\[` \S \aUR_ T\cR_[ZR[a`( \_
.' YNd aU_\bTU P\[`aVabaV\[NY ]_\cV`V\[` \_ R[NOYV[T YRTV`YNaV\[*

P* Unrestricted net position ) 8YY \aUR_ [Ra ]\`VaV\[ aUNa Q\R` [\a ZRRa aUR QRSV[VaV\[ \S i_R`a_VPaRQj \_
i[Ra V[cR`aZR[a V[ PN]VaNY N``Ra`*j

@a V` aUR :Vafk` ]\YVPf a\ SV_`a b`R _R`a_VPaRQ [Ra ]\`VaV\[ ]_V\_ a\ aUR b`R \S b[_R`a_VPaRQ [Ra ]\`VaV\[ dUR[ N[
Re]R[`R V` V[Pb__RQ S\_ ]b_]\`R` S\_ dUVPU O\aU _R`a_VPaRQ N[Q b[_R`a_VPaRQ [Ra ]\`VaV\[ N_R NcNVYNOYR*
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Fund Statements: 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance.  Fund balance is further classified as nonspendable, 
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.  These classifications are defined as: 

a.  Nonspendable – includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable 
form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

b. Restricted – consists of fund balance with constraints place on the use of resources either by 1) 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) 
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

c. Committed – includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints 
imposed by formal action of the city’s highest level of decision-making authority.  The City’s highest level of 
decision-making authority is made by ordinance.  The City currently reports no committed fund balance. 

d. Assigned – includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific purposes 
but are neither restricted nor committed.  Assignments of fund balance may be made by city council action or 
management decision when the city council has delegated that authority.  Assignments for transfers and 
interest income for governmental funds are made through the budgetary process. 

e. Unassigned – represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and has not been 
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. 

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted fund balance prior to the use of unrestricted fund balance when an 
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance are available.  The 
City’s policy for the use of unrestricted fund balance amounts require that committed amounts would be 
reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for 
purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.   

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.   

E.  Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses

Sales Tax

Sales and use tax revenue represents a 3.75 cents tax on each dollar of taxable sales which is recorded as 
revenue within the respective funds.  Upon receipt, the sales tax is recorded as follows: 

� 2 cents is recorded in the General Fund and then ¼ cent transferred to the Wastewater Enterprise 
Fund for construction and rehabilitation of wastewater infrastructure and ¼ cent transferred to the 
Water Enterprise Fund for construction and rehabilitation of water infrastructure. 

� ½ cent recorded in the Street Improvement Fund for capital projects related to street improvements. 

� ½ cent recorded in the Community Enhancement Fund for police and fire, auditorium and coliseum 
renovation, industrial growth, and parks and recreation. 

� ¼ cent, while in effect, recorded in the General Fund and transferred to the Ardmore Development 
Authority Fund for industrial development in the Ardmore area. 

� ½ cent recorded in the GAPS Tax City Fund for capital expenditures and public safety operations. 
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HNYR` aNe _R`bYaV[T S_\Z `NYR` \PPb__V[T ]_V\_ a\ fRN_)R[Q N[Q _RPRVcRQ Of aUR :Vaf NSaR_ fRN_ R[Q UNcR ORR[
NPP_bRQ N[Q V` V[PYbQRQ b[QR_ aUR PN]aV\[ Due from Other Governments ORPNb`R aURf _R]_R`R[a aNeR` \[
`NYR` \PPb__V[T Qb_V[T aUR _R]\_aV[T ]R_V\Q*

IUR n PR[a S\_ aUR 8_QZ\_R ;RcRY\]ZR[a 8baU\_Vaf =b[Q Re]V_RQ \[ HR]aRZOR_ /,( .,-/* ?\dRcR_( aUR
:Vaf SNVYRQ a\ [\aVSf aUR EXYNU\ZN INe :\ZZV``V\[ aUV` aNe dN` Re]V_V[T* IUR_RS\_R( aUR :Vaf P\[aV[bRQ a\
_RPRVcR aUR`R aNeR` S_\Z EPa\OR_ .,-/ aU_b ;RPRZOR_ .,-/ V[ R__\_* IUR :Vaf QR]\`VaRQ aUR`R aNeR` V[a\ N
`R]N_NaR ON[X NPP\b[a N[Q NT_RRQ a\ V``bR `NYR` aNe _RSb[Q` a\ N[f PVaVgR[ aUNa ]_\cVQRQ _RPRV]a` dVaUV[ aU_RR
fRN_` \S ;RPRZOR_ .,-/* IUR :Vaf UNQ [\a V``bRQ N[f _RSb[Q` N` \S Ab[R /,( .,./* IUR :Vaf UN` _RP\_QRQ N
`NYR` aNe ]NfNOYR V[ aUR NZ\b[a \S "/1,(54,* =\_ =M ./).0( aUR :Vaf dVYY aNXR aUR [RPR``N_f YRTNY NPaV\[ a\
_RP\T[VgR aUV` NZ\b[a N` _RcR[bR `V[PR [\ _RSb[Q` UNcR ORR[ PYNVZRQ*

@YVWLY[` CH_

J[QR_ HaNaR YNd( Zb[VPV]NYVaVR` N_R YVZVaRQ V[ aURV_ NOVYVaf a\ YRcf N ]_\]R_af aNe* HbPU aNe ZNf \[Yf OR
YRcVRQ a\ _R]Nf ]_V[PV]NY N[Q V[aR_R`a \[ TR[R_NY \OYVTNaV\[ O\[QRQ QROa N]]_\cRQ Of c\aR_` N[Q N[f
P\b_a)N``R``RQ WbQTZR[a`* 8a aUR ]_R`R[a aVZR aUR :Vaf YRcVR` N ]_\]R_af aNe S\_ P\b_a)N``R``RQ WbQTZR[a`*

IUR ]_\]R_af aNe YRcf( N` QRaR_ZV[RQ Of aUR :Vafk` QROa `R_cVPR [RRQ`( V` `bOZVaaRQ a\ aUR :\b[af <ePV`R
9\N_Q S\_ N]]_\cNY* :\b[af N``R``\_`( RYRPaRQ \SSVPVNY`( QRaR_ZV[R aUR aNeNOYR cNYbR \S _RNY R`aNaR N[Q
]R_`\[NY ]_\]R_af V[ aUR :\b[af* 8 HaNaR 9\N_Q \S <^bNYVgNaV\[ URN_` P\Z]YNV[a` \[ _RNY R`aNaR cNYbR` dVaU
aUR ]\dR_ a\ R^bNYVgR N``R``ZR[a`* J[QR_ ]_R`R[a HaNaR YNd( aUR _NaV\ \S N``R``RQ cNYbR a\ a_bR cNYbR PN[[\a
OR YR`` aUN[ -- ]R_PR[a \_ Z\_R aUN[ -/ m ]R_PR[a*

F_\]R_af aNeR` YRcVRQ Of aUR :Vaf N_R OVYYRQ N[Q P\YYRPaRQ Of aUR :\b[af I_RN`b_R_k` \SSVPR N[Q _RZVaaRQ a\
aUR :Vaf V[ aUR Z\[aU S\YY\dV[T P\YYRPaV\[* F_\]R_af aNeR` N_R YRcVRQ [\_ZNYYf V[ EPa\OR_ N[Q N_R QbR V[
R^bNY V[`aNYYZR[a` \[ ;RPRZOR_ /- N[Q CN_PU /-* F_\]R_af aNeR` b[]NVQ S\_ aUR SV`PNY fRN_ N_R NaaNPURQ Of
N[ R[S\_PRNOYR YVR[ \[ ]_\]R_af V[ aUR S\YY\dV[T EPa\OR_*

=\_ aUR fRN_ R[QRQ Ab[R /,( .,./( aUR :Vafk` [Ra N``R``RQ cNYbNaV\[ \S aNeNOYR ]_\]R_af dN` ".5.(531(0-2*
IUR aNeR` YRcVRQ Of aUR :Vaf ]R_ "-(,,, \S [Ra N``R``RQ cNYbNaV\[ S\_ aUR fRN_ R[QRQ Ab[R /,( .,./( dN`
",*.1*

?WLYH[PUN AL]LU\LZ HUK 5_WLUZLZ

E]R_NaV[T _RcR[bR` N[Q Re]R[`R` S\_ ]_\]_VRaN_f Sb[Q` N_R aU\`R aUNa _R`bYa S_\Z ]_\cVQV[T `R_cVPR` N[Q
]_\QbPV[T N[Q QRYVcR_V[T T\\Q` N[Q+\_ `R_cVPR`* @a NY`\ V[PYbQR` NYY _RcR[bR N[Q Re]R[`R` [\a _RYNaRQ a\
PN]VaNY N[Q _RYNaRQ SV[N[PV[T( [\[PN]VaNY SV[N[PV[T( \_ V[cR`aV[T NPaVcVaVR`*

5_WLUKP[\YLZ'5_WLUZLZ

@[ aUR T\cR_[ZR[a)dVQR SV[N[PVNY `aNaRZR[a`( Re]R[`R` N_R PYN``VSVRQ Of Sb[PaV\[ S\_ O\aU T\cR_[ZR[aNY N[Q
Ob`V[R``)af]R NPaVcVaVR`* @[ aUR Sb[Q SV[N[PVNY `aNaRZR[a`( Re]R[QVab_R` N_R PYN``VSVRQ N` S\YY\d`6

>\cR_[ZR[aNY =b[Q` ) 9f :UN_NPaR_6 :b__R[a &Sb_aUR_ PYN``VSVRQ Of Sb[PaV\['
;ROa HR_cVPR
:N]VaNY EbaYNf
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F_\]_VRaN_f =b[Q ) 9f E]R_NaV[T N[Q D\[)E]R_NaV[T

@[ aUR Sb[Q SV[N[PVNY `aNaRZR[a`( T\cR_[ZR[aNY Sb[Q` _R]\_a Re]R[QVab_R` \S SV[N[PVNY _R`\b_PR`* F_\]_VRaN_f
Sb[Q` _R]\_a Re]R[`R` _RYNaV[T a\ b`R \S RP\[\ZVP _R`\b_PR`*

6& 9U[LYUHS HUK 9U[LYM\UK 2HSHUJLZ HUK 1J[P]P[PLZ

@[ aUR ]_\PR`` \S NTT_RTNaV[T aUR SV[N[PVNY V[S\_ZNaV\[ S\_ aUR T\cR_[ZR[a)dVQR HaNaRZR[a \S DRa F\`VaV\[
N[Q HaNaRZR[a \S 8PaVcVaVR`( `\ZR NZ\b[a` _R]\_aRQ N` V[aR_Sb[Q NPaVcVaf N[Q ONYN[PR` V[ aUR Sb[Q SV[N[PVNY
`aNaRZR[a` UNcR ORR[ RYVZV[NaRQ \_ _RPYN``VSVRQ*

Fund Financial Statements: 

@[aR_Sb[Q NPaVcVaf( VS N[f( dVaUV[ N[Q NZ\[T aUR T\cR_[ZR[aNY N[Q ]_\]_VRaN_f Sb[Q PNaRT\_VR` V` _R]\_aRQ
N` S\YY\d` V[ aUR Sb[Q SV[N[PVNY `aNaRZR[a`6

-* @[aR_Sb[Q Y\N[` ) NZ\b[a` ]_\cVQRQ dVaU N _R^bV_RZR[a S\_ _R]NfZR[a N_R _R]\_aRQ N` V[aR_Sb[Q
_RPRVcNOYR` N[Q ]NfNOYR`*

.* @[aR_Sb[Q `R_cVPR` ) `NYR` \_ ]b_PUN`R` \S T\\Q` N[Q `R_cVPR` ORadRR[ Sb[Q` N_R _R]\_aRQ N` _RcR[bR`
N[Q Re]R[QVab_R`+Re]R[`R`*

/* @[aR_Sb[Q _RVZOb_`RZR[a` ) _R]NfZR[a` S_\Z Sb[Q` _R`]\[`VOYR S\_ PR_aNV[ Re]R[QVab_R`+Re]R[`R` a\ aUR
Sb[Q` aUNa V[VaVNYYf ]NVQ S\_ aURZ N_R [\a _R]\_aRQ N` _RVZOb_`RZR[a` Oba N` NQWb`aZR[a` a\
Re]R[QVab_R`+Re]R[`R` V[ aUR _R`]RPaVcR Sb[Q`*

0* @[aR_Sb[Q a_N[`SR_` ) SY\d \S N``Ra` S_\Z \[R Sb[Q a\ N[\aUR_ dUR_R _R]NfZR[a V` [\a Re]RPaRQ N_R
_R]\_aRQ N` a_N[`SR_` V[ N[Q \ba*

Government-Wide Financial Statements: 

@[aR_Sb[Q NPaVcVaf N[Q ONYN[PR`( VS N[f( N_R RYVZV[NaRQ \_ _RPYN``VSVRQ V[ aUR T\cR_[ZR[a)dVQR SV[N[PVNY
`aNaRZR[a` N` S\YY\d`6

-* @[aR_[NY ONYN[PR` ) NZ\b[a` _R]\_aRQ V[ aUR Sb[Q SV[N[PVNY `aNaRZR[a` N` V[aR_Sb[Q _RPRVcNOYR` N[Q
]NfNOYR` N_R RYVZV[NaRQ V[ aUR T\cR_[ZR[aNY N[Q Ob`V[R``)af]R NPaVcVaVR` P\YbZ[` \S aUR HaNaRZR[a \S
DRa F\`VaV\[( RePR]a S\_ aUR [Ra _R`VQbNY NZ\b[a` QbR ORadRR[ T\cR_[ZR[aNY N[Q Ob`V[R``)af]R NPaVcVaVR`(
dUVPU N_R _R]\_aRQ N` @[aR_[NY 9NYN[PR`*

.* @[aR_[NY NPaVcVaVR` ) NZ\b[a` _R]\_aRQ N` V[aR_Sb[Q a_N[`SR_` V[ aUR Sb[Q SV[N[PVNY `aNaRZR[a` N_R
RYVZV[NaRQ V[ aUR T\cR_[ZR[a)dVQR HaNaRZR[a \S 8PaVcVaVR` RePR]a S\_ aUR [Ra NZ\b[a \S a_N[`SR_`
ORadRR[ T\cR_[ZR[aNY N[Q Ob`V[R``)af]R NPaVcVaVR`( dUVPU N_R _R]\_aRQ N` I_N[`SR_` ) @[aR_[NY 8PaVcVaVR`*
IUR RSSRPa \S V[aR_Sb[Q `R_cVPR` ORadRR[ Sb[Q`( VS N[f( V` [\a RYVZV[NaRQ V[ aUR HaNaRZR[a \S 8PaVcVaVR`*
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G.  Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures; 
accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. The City generally uses an estimate based on 
municipal bond rate yield curves as the discount rate for leases and subscription-based information technology 
arrangements unless the rate that the lessor/vendor charges is known.  

H. Pensions and OPEB 

For purposes of measuring the net pension asset, net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension & Retirement System (OFPRS), Oklahoma Police Pension 
& Retirement System (OPPRS) and Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OkMRF) and additions 
to/deductions from OFPRS, OPPRS and OkMRF’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 
basis as they are reported by OFPRS, OPPRS and OkMRF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. Investments held by these funds are reported at fair value. 

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows 
and OPEB expense for the single employer other postemployment benefit plan the measurement has been 
prepared in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75. 

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

 At June 30, 2023, the reporting entity held the following deposits and investments: 

Primary Government:

Credit Carrying Fair Value

Type Maturities Rating Value Hierarchy

Deposits:

  Demand deposits 15,768,282  - 

  Cash on hand 6,200  - 

15,774,482

Investments:

  Trustee accounts money market fund AAA 4,528,943  - 

  Investment in Judgments N/A 157,018 Level III

  US Treasury Bills Maturity (0-5 Yrs) N/A 12,611,294 Level II

  US Treasury Note Maturity (0-5 Yrs) N/A 701,339 Level II

  FFCB U.S. Government Securities Maturity (0-5 Yrs) AA+ 9,941,069 Level II

  FFCB U.S. Government Securities Maturity (5-10 Yrs) AA+ 2,628,587 Level II

  FHLB U.S. Government Securities Maturity (0-5 Yrs) AA+ 37,114,493 Level II

  FHLB U.S. Government Securities Maturity (5-10 Yrs) AA+ 2,783,090 Level II

  FFCB U.S. Government Securities Maturity (10 Yrs & up) AA+ 384,475 Level II

70,850,308

Total deposits and investments 86,624,790$         

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:

Cash and cash equivalents 18,777,422$         

Investments 67,847,368

86,624,790$         

 See accompanying footnotes to this schedule. 
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Custodial Credit Risk – Exposure to custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds 
deposits that are uninsured and uncollateralized; collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 
institution, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name; or collateralized without a written 
or approved collateral agreement. Exposure to custodial credit risk related to investments exists when the 
City holds investments that are uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty or by 
its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name. 

The City’s policy requires collateral for demand deposits and certificates of deposit for all amounts not 
covered by federal deposit insurance.  At June 30, 2023 the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

Investment Interest Rate Risk - the City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

Investment Credit Risk - The City’s investment policy limits its investment choices to that of the limitation 
of state law as follows:  

a. Direct obligations of the U. S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities to which the full
faith and credit of the U. S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the payment of which the full
faith and credit of the State is pledged.
b. Certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with acceptable
collateral with in-state financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of deposit or savings accounts
in out-of-state financial institutions.
c. With certain limitation, negotiable certificates of deposit, prime bankers acceptances, prime
commercial paper and repurchase agreements with certain limitations.
d. County, municipal or school district tax supported debt obligations, bond or revenue anticipation
notes, money judgments, or bond or revenue anticipation notes of public trusts whose beneficiary is a
county, municipality or school district.
e. Notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed insured by the Federal Housing Administrator
and debentures issued by the Federal Housing Administrator, and in obligations of the National
Mortgage Association.
f. Money market funds regulated by the SEC and in which investments consist of the investments
mentioned in the previous paragraphs a, b, c, and d.

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - the City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one 
issuer.   Since the City has all investments in certificates of deposit, government securities, or money market 
accounts, there is no concentration of investment credit risk exposure. 

Restricted Cash and Investments – The amounts reported as restricted assets of the proprietary fund 
statement of net position are comprised of amounts restricted for utility deposits, debt service or 
construction purposes.  The restricted assets as of June 30, 2023 are as follows: 
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Cash and cash

equivalents

Series 2009 Debt Service Account 16,387$          

Series 2012 Reserve Account 77,579

Series 2015 Note Revenue Account 791,397

Series 2015 Construction Account 3,134,959

Series 2016 Note Revenue Account 80,841

Series 2016 Construction Account 427,780

Meter deposits 421,130

   Total 4,950,073$      

Current

3.  Accounts, Notes and Leases Receivable

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consist of customers utilities 
services provided, both billed and unbilled, due at year end, reported net of allowance for uncollectible 
amounts.  The governmental activities receivables include police fines receivables. 

Less:  Allowance Net

Accounts for Uncollectible Accounts

Receivable Accounts Receivable

Governmental Activities:

  Court fines 295,356$          (59,072)$           236,284$          

Business-Type Activities:

  Utilities 2,972,022$       (270,762)$         2,701,260$       

Lease Receivable – The City as a lessor, has entered into lease agreements involving land and buildings. 
The total amount of inflows of resources, including lease revenue and interest revenue recognized during 
the fiscal year was $103,122. Lease receivable balances at June 30th, 2023, were as follows: 

Russell Noble Trust 19,262$            

Noble Research Institute 87,232

Air Evac EMS 20,090

Bulard Air Service 13,627

Hangar Village Associates 66,566

Butler Real Estate Holdings 7,886

Air Evac Executive 599,404

David Smith 7,819

Total Lease Receivable Governmental 821,886$          

4.  Capital Assets and Depreciation 

Capital Assets: 

Capital assets consist of land, buildings, computers, furniture and fixtures, vehicles, machinery and 
equipment, infrastructure and intangibles.  Capital assets are reported at actual or estimated historical cost.  
Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair value at the date of donation.   For the year ended June 30, 
2023, capital assets balances changed as follows: 
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Balance at Additions Disposals Balance at

July 1, 2022 and Transfers and Transfers June 30, 2023

Governmental activities:

 Capital assets not being depreciated:

    Land 6,826,854$             -$                            -$                            6,826,854$             

      Total capital assets not being depreciated 6,826,854 - - 6,826,854

  Depreciable assets:

    Buildings 28,831,708 600,108 - 29,431,816

    Computers 10,085,378 190,952 165,285 10,111,045

    Furniture and fixtures 1,375,021 123,241 25,365 1,472,897

    Vehicles 6,206,839 392,091 237,421 6,361,509

Machinery and equipment 5,658,361 176,401 86,653 5,748,109

Infrastructure 86,955,663 3,806,600 - 90,762,263

      Total depreciable assets at historical cost 139,112,970 5,289,393 514,724 143,887,639

  Less accumulated depreciation for:

    Buildings 7,712,437 636,325 - 8,348,762

    Computers 8,010,675 448,555 156,032 8,303,198

    Furniture and fixtures 1,112,933 54,763 25,365 1,142,331

    Vehicles 4,605,068 493,222 193,152 4,905,138

Machinery and equipment 4,796,037 207,182 86,652 4,916,567

Infrastructure 68,758,647 3,030,332 - 71,788,979

      Total accumulated depreciation 94,995,797 4,870,379 461,201 99,404,975

  Other assets:

    Intangible leased equipment 288,861 - - 288,861

    Subscription asset - 208,670 - 208,670

      Total other assets 288,861 208,670 - 497,531

   Less accumulated amortization for:

    Intangible leased equipment 57,772 57,772 - 115,544

    Subscription asset - 73,693 - 73,693

      Total accumulated amortization 57,772 131,465 - 189,237

   Depreciable and other assets, net 44,348,262 496,219 53,523 44,790,958

 Governmental activities capital assets, net 51,175,116$           287,549$                53,523$                  51,617,812$           

Business-type activities:

  Capital assets not being depreciated:

    Land 448,526$                -$                            -$                            448,526$                

      Total capital assets not being depreciated 448,526 - - 448,526

  Depreciable assets:

    Buildings 49,318,385 104,212 - 49,422,597

    Computers 396,746 19,049 7,224 408,571

    Furniture and fixtures 89,547 - - 89,547

    Vehicles 4,069,755 259,478 94,340 4,234,893

Machinery and equipment 4,793,983 261,194 184,181 4,870,996

Infrastructure 124,035,148 3,683,885 - 127,719,033

      Total depreciable assets at historical cost 182,703,564 4,327,818 285,745 186,745,637

  Less accumulated depreciation for:

    Buildings 19,108,705 979,071 - 20,087,776

    Computers 285,932 18,709 7,224 297,417

    Furniture and fixtures 72,429 3,722 - 76,151

    Vehicles 2,938,768 399,637 94,340 3,244,065

M achinery and equipment 4,053,962 219,765 184,181 4,089,546

Infrastructure 106,907,609 3,127,050 - 110,034,659

   Total accumulated depreciation 133,367,405 4,747,954 285,745 137,829,614

  Other assets:

    Subscription asset - 304,408 - 304,408

      Total other assets at historical cost - 304,408 - 304,408

   Less accumulated amortization for:

    Subscription asset - 106,267 106,267

      Total accumulated amortization - 106,267 - 106,267

   Depreciable and other assets, net 49,336,159 (221,995) - 49,114,164

   Business-type activities capital assets, net 49,784,685$           (221,995)$               -$                            49,562,690$           
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Depreciation/amortization of capital assets is included in total expenses and is charged or allocated to the 
activities primarily benefiting from the use of the specific asset. Leased assets are amortized over the life 
of the associated contract.  Depreciation/amortization expense has been allocated as follows: 

Depreciation/amortization expense charged to governmental activities:

Depreciation:

894,348$                 

Public safety 564,425

Street 2,406,838

Culture and recreation 381,371

Cemetery 26,680

Airport 596,717

 Total depreciation expense 4,870,379$              

Amortization:

131,465

 Total amortization expense 131,465

 Total depreciation/amortization expense 5,001,844$              

Depreciation/amortization expense charged to business-type activities:

Depreciation:

Water 1,986,825$              

Wastewater 2,314,077

Sanitation 391,492

Golf 55,560

4,747,954$              

Amortization:

106,267

 Total amortization expense 106,267

 Total depreciation/amortization expense 4,854,221$              

General government

 Total depreciation expense

General government

Water

5.  Long-Term Debt and Debt Service Requirements 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the reporting entity’s long-term debt changed as follows: 
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Balance Balance Due Within

Type of Debt July 1, 2022 Additions Deductions June 30, 2023 One Year

Governmental Activities:

Lease Obligations 231,506$             -$               57,245$         174,261$                   57,664$          

Subscription Obligations - 135,768 - 135,768 74,507

Claims payable 256,872 5,256,388 5,238,500 274,760 -

Accrued compensated absences 1,114,491 93,122 - 1,207,613 120,761

Total Governmental Activities 1,602,869$          5,485,278$    5,295,745$    1,792,402$                252,932$        

Business-Type Activities:

Notes Payable-direct borrowings/placements 15,552,458$        433,974$       4,502,087$    11,484,345$              4,158,078$     

Subscription Obligations - 191,608 - 191,608 109,344

Deposits subject to refund 386,155 145,930 110,955 421,130 84,226

Accrued compensated absences 274,812 15,877 - 290,689 29,069

Total Business-Type Activities 16,213,425$        787,389$       4,613,042$    12,387,772$              4,380,717$     

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:

Governmental Activities:

Due within one year 252,932$                   

Due in more than one year 1,539,470

Total OPEB liability 1,899,745

Net pension liability 8,880,191

Total Governmental Activities Long-Term Liabilities 12,572,338$              

Business-Type Activities:

Due within one year 4,380,717$                

Due in more than one year 8,007,055

Total OPEB liability 559,316

Net pension liability 226,039

Total Business-Type Activities Long-Term Liabilities 13,173,127$              

Governmental activities long-term debt payables from net revenues include the following: 

Claims Payable: 
Current portion -

Noncurrent portion 274,760

Total Claims Payable 274,760$                 

Accrued Compensated Absences: 
Current portion 120,761

Noncurrent portion 1,086,852

Total Accrued Compensated Absences 1,207,613$              

Total OPEB Liability: 
Current portion -

Noncurrent portion 1,899,745

Total OPEB liability 1,899,745$              

 Net Pension Liability: 
Current portion -

Noncurrent portion 8,880,191

Total Net Pension Liability 8,880,191$              

The City as a lessee, has entered into a lease agreement involving equipment for city operations. 

Current portion 57,664$                   

Noncurrent portion 116,597

Total Capital Leases Payable 174,261$                 
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The City has entered into subscription-based information technology arrangements involving various 
operational software with terms of three years. 

Current portion 74,507$                   

Noncurrent portion 61,261

Total Subscriptions Payable 135,768$                 

Business-type activities long-term debt payable from net revenues generated by and taxes pledged to the 
City’s business-type activities include the following: 

Notes Payable-Direct Placements: 
2012 CW SRF Note Payable to Oklahoma Water Resources Board dated November 19, 2012

original amount of $8,697,000 with an annual interest rate of 1.7% due in semi-annual

installments of principal and interest beginning September 15, 2015, final installment due

March 15, 2035, payable from and secured by utility revenues. In the event of default, the

lender may: 1) file suit for specific performance of covenants; 2) accelerate maturity of

principal and interest accrued; 3) appoint trustees to take over, operate, and maintain the

System; 4) file suit to enforce or enjoin action or inaction of parties under provisions of the

note. 6,335,897$              

2021 CW SRF Note Payable to Oklahoma Water Resources Board dated December 1, 2021

original amount of $30,000,000 with an annual interest rate of 1.72% due in semi-annual

installments of principal and interest beginning September 15, 2024, final installment due

March 15, 2054, payable from and secured by utility revenues. In the event of default, the

lender may: 1) file suit for specific performance of covenants; 2) accelerate maturity of

principal and interest accrued; 3) appoint trustees to take over, operate, and maintain the

System; 4) file suit to enforce or enjoin action or inaction of parties under provisions of the

note. The City has only drawn down a portion of the loan as of June 30, 2023. 433,974

2015 Series Utility System and Sales Tax Revenue Note through Bancfirst dated June 24,

2015, original amount of $5,430,000 with an annual interest rate of 1.89% due in semi-annual

installments of principal and interest beginning October 1, 2015, final installment due April

1, 2024, payable from and secured by utility revenues and 1/2 cent sales tax. In the event of

default, the lender may: 1) file suit for specific performance of covenants; 2) accelerate

maturity of principal and interest accrued; 3) appoint trustees to take over, operate, and

maintain the System; 4) file suit to enforce or enjoin action or inaction of parties under

provisions of the note or sales tax agreement. 3,090,000

2009 CW SRF Note Payable to Oklahoma Water Resources Board dated December 18, 2009,

original amount of $1,090,000 with an annual interest rate of 2.67% due in semi-annual

installments of principal and interest beginning September 15, 2010, final installment due

March 15, 2030, payable from and secured by utility revenues. In the event of default, the

lender may: 1) file suit for specific performance of covenants; 2) accelerate maturity of

principal and interest accrued; 3) appoint trustees to take over, operate, and maintain the

System; 4) file suit to enforce or enjoin action or inaction of parties under provisions of the

note. 289,474



39CG ?6 1A4=?A5$ ?;<18?=1

1>>D1< 69>1>391< A5@?AC

1Z VM HUK MVY [OL GLHY 5UKLK :\UL +($ *(*+

1-

;R]\`Va` HbOWRPa a\ GRSb[Q6
:b__R[a ]\_aV\[ 40(..2

D\[Pb__R[a ]\_aV\[ //2(5,0

I\aNY ;R]\`Va` HbOWRPa a\ GRSb[Q 0.-(-/,"

8PP_bRQ :\Z]R[`NaRQ 8O`R[PR`6
:b__R[a ]\_aV\[ .5(,25

D\[Pb__R[a ]\_aV\[ .2-(2.,

I\aNY 8PP_bRQ :\Z]R[`NaRQ 8O`R[PR` .5,(245"

I\aNY EF<9 BVNOVYVaf6
:b__R[a ]\_aV\[ )

D\[Pb__R[a ]\_aV\[ 115(/-2

I\aNY EF<9 BVNOVYVaf 115(/-2"

DRa FR[`V\[ BVNOVYVaf6
:b__R[a ]\_aV\[ )

D\[Pb__R[a ]\_aV\[ ..2(,/5

I\aNY DRa FR[`V\[ BVNOVYVaf ..2(,/5"

IUR :Vaf UN` R[aR_RQ V[a\ `bO`P_V]aV\[)ON`RQ V[S\_ZNaV\[ aRPU[\Y\Tf N__N[TRZR[a` V[c\YcV[T cN_V\b`
\]R_NaV\[NY `\SadN_R dVaU aR_Z` \S aU_RR fRN_`*

:b__R[a ]\_aV\[ -,5(/00"

D\[Pb__R[a ]\_aV\[ 4.(.20

I\aNY HbO`P_V]aV\[` FNfNOYR -5-(2,4"

;ROa HR_cVPR GR^bV_RZR[a` a\ CNab_Vaf6

MRN_ <[QV[T Ab[R /,( F_V[PV]NY @[aR_R`a F_V[PV]NY @[aR_R`a

.,.0 13(220 -(--0 30(1,3 .(13.

.,.1 14(,42 25. 2-(.2- -(/10

.,.2 14(1-- .23 ) )

I\aNY` -30(.2-" .(,3/" -/1(324" /(5.2"

HbO`P_V]aV\[ EOYVTNaV\[`

>\cR_[ZR[aNY 8PaVcVaVR`

BRN`R EOYVTNaV\[`



39CG ?6 1A4=?A5$ ?;<18?=1

1>>D1< 69>1>391< A5@?AC

1Z VM HUK MVY [OL GLHY 5UKLK :\UL +($ *(*+

1.

HbO`P_V]aV\[ EOYVTNaV\[`

MRN_ <[QV[T Ab[R /,( F_V[PV]NY @[aR_R`a F_V[PV]NY @[aR_R`a

.,.0 0(-14(,34 .-3(/21 -,5(/00 /(3/4

.,.1 -(,3/(-,5 -1-(.21 4.(.20 -(4-4

.,.2 -5,(.,. -/5(/50 ) )

.,.3 2/5(//4 -/.(055 ) )

.,.4 21/(121 --4(.3/ ) )

.,.5).,// /(/13(0-- /20(3/0 ) )

.,/0).,/1 -(0-.(20. /5(23. ) )
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LNaR_ <[aR_]_V`R =b[Q ;\d[a\d[ <eRPbaVcR 8V_]\_a =b[Q /1,(,,, GRVZOb_`RZR[a \S Re]R[`R` V[Pb__RQ

LNaR_ <[aR_]_V`R =b[Q >8FH INe :Vaf =b[Q -2(2.3 ;ROa ]NfZR[a`

HN[VaNaV\[ <[aR_]_V`R =b[Q >R[R_NY =b[Q .(,,,(,,, E]R_NaV[T a_N[`SR_

LN`aRdNaR_ <[aR_]_V`R =b[Q >R[R_NY =b[Q -(1,,(,,, E]R_NaV[T a_N[`SR_

LN`aRdNaR_ <[aR_]_V`R =b[Q ;\d[a\d[ <eRPbaVcR 8V_]\_a =b[Q /1,(,,, GRVZOb_`RZR[a \S Re]R[`R` V[Pb__RQ

LN`aRdNaR_ <[aR_]_V`R =b[Q LNaR_ <[aR_]_V̀ R =b[Q -(.-/(2.3 ;ROa ]NfZR[a`

I\aNY -3(,-1(023"

ALJVUJPSPH[PVU [V 6\UK 6PUHUJPHS B[H[LTLU[Z0 >L :N]VaNY 8``Ra+>_N[a

I_N[`SR_` @[ I_N[`SR_` Eba Fb_PUN`R`+I_N[`SR_` DRa I_N[`SR_`

>\cR_[ZR[aNY =b[Q` 5(0.-(35-" &5(141(.-/'" &-(,02(,30'" &-(.,5(052'"

F_\]_VRaN_f =b[Q` 3(15/(232 &3(0/,(.10' -(,02(,30 -(.,5(052

-3(,-1(023" &-3(,-1(023'" )" )"

Internal Balances: 

@[aR_Sb[Q _RPRVcNOYR N[Q ]NfNOYR` Na Ab[R /,( .,./ dR_R P\Z]_V`RQ \S aUR S\YY\dV[T6

4\L 6YVT 4\L CV 1TV\U[ >H[\YL VM 2HSHUJL

>R[R_NY =b[Q LN`aRdNaR_ <[aR_]_V`R =b[Q .0-(--/ F\_aV\[ \S `NYR` aNe NPP_bNY

>R[R_NY =b[Q LNaR_ <[aR_]_V`R =b[Q .02(--4 F\_aV\[ \S `NYR` aNe NPP_bNY

>R[R_NY =b[Q >N_NTR :N`U =b[Q 0.(,3. GRVZOb_`R S\_ QR]\`Va _RP\_QRQ V[P\__RPaYf

>R[R_NY =b[Q H\YVQ LN`aR =b[Q /.(210 GRVZOb_`R S\_ QR]\`Va _RP\_QRQ V[P\__RPaYf

>R[R_NY =b[Q <Z]Y\fRR 9R[RSVa @[aR_[NY HR_cVPR =b[Q -.-(250 F\_aV\[ \S `RYS)V[`b_N[PR PYNVZ` ]NfNOYR

;ROa HR_cVPR =b[Q >R[R_NY =b[Q -2,(,51 ;ROa `R_cVPR

;ROa HR_cVPR =b[Q Ha_RRa @Z]_\cRZR[a =b[Q .2(3.5 ;ROa `R_cVPR

;ROa HR_cVPR =b[Q ?NgN_Q CVaVTNaV\[ >_N[a =b[Q .1(-,1 ;ROa `R_cVPR

LNaR_ <[aR_]_V`R =b[Q <Z]Y\fRR 9R[RSVa @[aR_[NY HR_cVPR =b[Q /-(/,4 F\_aV\[ \S `RYS)V[`b_N[PR PYNVZ` ]NfNOYR

LN`aRdNaR_ <[aR_]_V`R =b[Q <Z]Y\fRR 9R[RSVa @[aR_[NY HR_cVPR =b[Q -/(12, F\_aV\[ \S `RYS)V[`b_N[PR PYNVZ` ]NfNOYR

H\YVQ LN`aR =b[Q <Z]Y\fRR 9R[RSVa @[aR_[NY HR_cVPR =b[Q -3(,,4 F\_aV\[ \S `RYS)V[`b_N[PR PYNVZ` ]NfNOYR

Ha_RRa @Z]_\cRZR[a =b[Q <Z]Y\fRR 9R[RSVa @[aR_[NY HR_cVPR =b[Q --(,,5 F\_aV\[ \S `RYS)V[`b_N[PR PYNVZ` ]NfNOYR

:YbOU\b`R =b[Q <Z]Y\fRR 9R[RSVa @[aR_[NY HR_cVPR =b[Q -(/-4 F\_aV\[ \S `RYS)V[`b_N[PR PYNVZ` ]NfNOYR

:YbOU\b`R =b[Q >R[R_NY =b[Q 1(,,, 8QcN[PR a\ :YbOU\b`R

>N_NTR :N`U =b[Q <Z]Y\fRR 9R[RSVa @[aR_[NY HR_cVPR =b[Q 3(3,0 F\_aV\[ \S `RYS)V[`b_N[PR PYNVZ` ]NfNOYR

GR`R_cR CN[NTRZR[a =b[Q ;\d[a\d[ <eRPbaVcR 8V_]\_a =b[Q -34(.23 GRVZOb_`R S\_ YRN`R ]NfZR[a` _RPRVcRQ

BVO_N_f :N`U =b[Q BVaR_NPf >_N[a =b[Q -(015 GRVZOb_`R S\_ QR]\`Va _RP\_QRQ V[P\__RPaYf

=88 >_N[a =b[Q GR`R_cR CN[NTRZR[a =b[Q 045 GRVZOb_`R _RcR[bR`

<Z]Y\fRR 9R[RSVa @[aR_[NY HR_cVPR =b[Q >R[R_NY =b[Q /-(4,. GRVZOb_`R _RcR[bR`

<5-- =b[Q >R[R_NY =b[Q .0(/51 GRVZOb_`R S\_ QR]\`Va _RP\_QRQ V[P\__RPaYf

Cb[VPV]NY :\b_a =b[Q >R[R_NY =b[Q 1(.-, :\b_a SV[R` [\a a_N[`SR__RQ

I\aNY -(..0(-,5"

ALJVUJPSPH[PVU [V 6\UK 6PUHUJPHS B[H[LTLU[Z0

;bR =_\Z ;bR I\ @[aR_[NY HR_cVPR =b[Q 8PaVcVaf DRa @[aR_[NY 9NYN[PR`

>\cR_[ZR[aNY =b[Q` 014(11-" &-(,20(5,3'" -.4(50." &033(0-0'"

F_\]_VRaN_f =b[Q` 1-5(441 &0.(03-' ) 033(0-0

@[aR_[NY HR_cVPR =b[Q` .01(23/ &--2(3/-' &-.4(50.'" )

I\aNY -(..0(-,5" &-(..0(-,5'" )" )"
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.& @SLKNL VM 6\[\YL AL]LU\LZ

Sales Tax and Utility Net Revenues Pledge h IUR :Vaf UN` ]YRQTRQ m PR[a \S Sbab_R `NYR` aNe _RcR[bR` N[Q
[Ra dNaR_ N[Q dN`aRdNaR_ baVYVaf _RcR[bR` a\ _R]Nf aUR S\YY\dV[T [\aR` ]NfNOYR6 "-(,5,(,,, \S .,,5 ELG9
D\aR` FNfNOYR( "4(253(,,, \S .,-. ELG9 D\aR` FNfNOYR( "/,(,,,(,,, \S .,.- ELG9 D\aR` FNfNOYR(
"1(0/,(,,, \S .,-1 HR_VR` JaVYVaf Hf`aRZ N[Q HNYR` INe GRcR[bR D\aR`( "3(,/1(,,, \S .,-2 HR_VR` JaVYVaf
Hf`aRZ N[Q HNYR` INe GRcR[bR D\aR`* F_\PRRQ` S_\Z aUR O\[Q` ]_\cVQRQ S\_ aUR ]b_PUN`R \_ P\[`a_bPaV\[
\S dNaR_ N[Q dN`aRdNaR_ baVYVaf `f`aRZ`* IUR [\aR` N_R ]NfNOYR S_\Z ]YRQTRQ `NYR` aNe N[Q [Ra dNaR_ N[Q
`RdR_ baVYVaf _RcR[bR` aU_\bTU .,/,( .,/1( .,10( .,./( .,.0 N[Q .,.0 _R`]RPaVcRYf* IUR a\aNY ]_V[PV]NY
N[Q V[aR_R`a ]NfNOYR S\_ aUR _RZNV[QR_ \S aUR YVSR \S aUR`R [\aR` V` "-.(203(103* FYRQTRQ [Ra dNaR_ N[Q `RdR_
baVYVaf _RcR[bR` N[Q ]YRQTRQ `NYR` aNe V[ aUR Pb__R[a SV`PNY fRN_ dR_R "-.(/2-(42/* CNeVZbZ N[[bNY QROa
`R_cVPR \[ NYY ]N_Vaf QROa a\aNYRQ "0(552(054 dUVPU dN` .03# \S a\aNY ]YRQTRQ _RcR[bR` S\_ aUR`R [\aR`*

>_\`` GRcR[bR 8cNVYNOYR S\_ ;ROa HR_cVPR6

:UN_TR` S\_ `R_cVPR` -0(1-0(,0."

HNYR` aNe ]YRQTRQ &-+. PR[a' /(50-(0,0

I\aNY >_\`` GRcR[bR` 8cNVYNOYR -4(011(002

E]R_NaV[T <e]R[`R`6

E]R_NaV\[` 2(,5/(14/

I\aNY E]R_NaV[T <e]R[`R` 2(,5/(14/

DRa GRcR[bR` 8cNVYNOYR S\_ ;ROa HR_cVPR "-.(/2-(42/

;ROa HR_cVPR GR^bV_RZR[a`6

CNeVZbZ N[[bNY QROa `R_cVPR \[ NYY 8FL8 ]N_Vaf QROa "0(552(054

:\Z]baRQ :\cR_NTR .03#

:\cR_NTR GR^bV_RZR[a -.1#

IUR NO\cR T_\`` _RcR[bR N[Q \]R_NaV[T Re]R[`R` V[PYbQR \[Yf dNaR_ N[Q `RdR_ \]R_NaV\[` \S aUR 8_QZ\_R FbOYVP

L\_X` 8baU\_Vaf( RePYbQV[T QR]_RPVNaV\[ N[Q NZ\_aVgNaV\[*

/& APZR =HUHNLTLU[

IUR :Vaf V` Re]\`RQ a\ cN_V\b` _V`X` \S Y\`` &a\_a`( aURSa \S( QNZNTR a\( \_ QR`a_bPaV\[ \S N``Ra`( Ob`V[R``
V[aR__b]aV\[`( R__\_` N[Q \ZV``V\[`( W\O)_RYNaRQ VYY[R``R` \_ V[Wb_VR` a\ RZ]Y\fRR`( N[Q NPa` \S >\Q' N[Q UN`
R`aNOYV`URQ N _V`X ZN[NTRZR[a `a_NaRTf aUNa NaaRZ]a` a\ ZV[VZVgR Y\``R` N[Q aUR PN__fV[T P\`a \S V[`b_N[PR*
IUR_R UNcR ORR[ [\ `VT[VSVPN[a _RQbPaV\[` V[ V[`b_N[PR P\cR_NTR S_\Z aUR ]_V\_ fRN_ N[Q `RaaYRZR[a` UNcR
[\a RePRRQRQ P\cR_NTR V[ aUR ]N`a aU_RR fRN_`*

General Liability, Physical Property and Automobile Liability/ Physical Damage h TR[R_NY YVNOVYVaf(
]Uf`VPNY ]_\]R_af N[Q Nba\Z\OVYR YVNOVYVaf+]Uf`VPNY QNZNTR N_R V[`b_RQ aU_\bTU aUR EXYNU\ZN Cb[VPV]NY
8``b_N[PR >_\b] _V`X R[aVaf ]\\Y* ;RQbPaVOYR` _N[TR S_\Z ", a\ "1(,,,* GV`X \S Y\`` _RaNV[RQ V` YVZVaRQ a\
aUR RePR`` \S V[`b_N[PR YVNOVYVaf P\cR_NTR YVZVa` `Ra Of EC8>*
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Internal Service 

IUR :Vaf%` _V`X ZN[NTRZR[a NPaVcVaVR` N_R _RP\_QRQ V[ aUR @[aR_[NY HR_cVPR =b[Q`* IUR ]b_]\`R \S aUR Sb[Q
V` a\ NQZV[V`aR_ RZ]Y\fRR YVSR N[Q URNYaU V[`b_N[PR ]_\T_NZ` \S aUR :Vaf \[ N P\`a)_RVZOb_`RZR[a ON`V`*
IUV` Sb[Q NPP\b[a` S\_ aUR _V`X SV[N[PV[T \S aUR :Vaf Oba Q\R` [\a P\[`aVabaR N a_N[`SR_ \S _V`X S_\Z aUR :Vaf*
IUR :Vaf ZNV[aNV[` N `a\])Y\`` ]\YVPf S\_ aUR V[QRZ[Vaf URNYaU ]YN[ a\ YVZVa _V`X N``\PVNaRQ dVaU aUNa ]YN[*
IUR :Vaf _RP\_Q` N[ R`aVZNaRQ YVNOVYVaf S\_ V[QRZ[Vaf URNYaU PN_R* :YNVZ` YVNOVYVaVR` N_R ON`RQ \[ R`aVZNaR`
\S aUR bYaVZNaR P\`a \S _R]\_aRQ PYNVZ` &V[PYbQV[T Sbab_R PYNVZ NQWb`aZR[a Re]R[`R`' N[Q R`aVZNaR S\_ PYNVZ`
V[Pb__RQ Oba [\a _R]\_aRQ ON`RQ \[ UV`a\_VPNY Re]R_VR[PR* IUR Sb[Q R`aNOYV`UR` N YVNOVYVaf S\_ O\aU _R]\_aRQ
N[Q b[_R]\_aRQ RcR[a`( dUVPU V[PYbQR` R`aVZNaR` \S O\aU Sbab_R ]NfZR[a` \S Y\``R` N[Q _RYNaRQ PYNVZ
NQWb`aZR[a Re]R[`R`*

IUR S\YY\dV[T _R]_R`R[a` aUR PUN[TR` V[ N]]_\eVZNaR NTT_RTNaR URNYaU PN_R YVNOVYVaVR` S\_ aUR :Vaf S_\Z
AbYf -( .,-3 a\ Ab[R /,( .,./6

<Z]Y\fRR

?RNYaU

:YNVZ` YVNOVYVaf( Ab[R /,( .,-3 /,0(-,,"

:YNVZ` V[Pb__RQ N[Q PUN[TR` V[ R`aVZNaR` /(/,/(2,2

:YNVZ` ]NVQ &/(//.(.03'

:YNVZ` YVNOVYVaf( Ab[R /,( .,-4 .31(015

:YNVZ` V[Pb__RQ N[Q PUN[TR` V[ R`aVZNaR` /(.15(/2.

:YNVZ` ]NVQ &.(/,2(13,'

:YNVZ` YVNOVYVaf( Ab[R /,( .,-5 -(..4(.1-

:YNVZ` V[Pb__RQ N[Q PUN[TR` V[ R`aVZNaR` 0(2-4(5.-

:YNVZ` ]NVQ &1(241(5/4'

:YNVZ` YVNOVYVaf( Ab[R /,( .,., -2-(./0

:YNVZ` V[Pb__RQ N[Q PUN[TR` V[ R`aVZNaR` 2(-.4(15.

:YNVZ` ]NVQ &1(424(1,5'

:YNVZ` YVNOVYVaf( Ab[R /,( .,.- 0.-(/-3

:YNVZ` V[Pb__RQ N[Q PUN[TR` V[ R`aVZNaR` 1(214(1./

:YNVZ` ]NVQ &1(4..(524'

:YNVZ` YVNOVYVaf( Ab[R /,( .,.. .12(43.

:YNVZ` V[Pb__RQ N[Q PUN[TR` V[ R`aVZNaR` 1(.12(/44

:YNVZ` ]NVQ &1(./4(1,,'

:YNVZ` YVNOVYVaf( Ab[R /,( .,./ .30(32,

)(& 3VTTP[TLU[Z HUK 3VU[PUNLUJPLZ

Asset Retirement Obligation: 

IUR :Vaf UN` V[Pb__RQ PR_aNV[ N``Ra _RaV_RZR[a \OYVTNaV\[` _RYNaRQ a\ aUR \]R_NaV\[ \S Va` dN`aRdNaR_ baVYVaf
`f`aRZ* IUR R`aVZNaRQ YVNOVYVaf \S aUR YRTNYYf _R^bV_RQ PY\`b_R P\`a` S\_ aUR dN`aRdNaR_ baVYVaf `f`aRZ PN[[\a
OR _RN`\[NOYf R`aVZNaRQ N` \S Ab[R /,( .,./( `V[PR aUR `]RPVSVP YRTNYYf _R^bV_RQ P\`a` \S _RaV_RZR[a UNcR [\a
fRa ORR[ VQR[aVSVRQ* IUR :Vaf N[aVPV]NaR` VQR[aVSfV[T aU\`R `]RPVSVP YRTNYYf _R^bV_RQ P\`a`( VS N[f( N[Q
\OaNV[V[T N[ R`aVZNaR \S aU\`R P\`a` V[ N `bO`R^bR[a SV`PNY fRN_*
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Litigation: 

IUR :Vaf V` N ]N_af a\ cN_V\b` YRTNY ]_\PRRQV[T` dUVPU [\_ZNYYf \PPb_ V[ aUR P\b_`R \S T\cR_[ZR[aNY
\]R_NaV\[`* IUR SV[N[PVNY `aNaRZR[a` Q\ [\a V[PYbQR NPP_bNY` \_ ]_\cV`V\[` S\_ Y\`` P\[aV[TR[PVR` aUNa ZNf
_R`bYa S_\Z aUR`R ]_\PRRQV[T`* HaNaR `aNabaR` ]_\cVQR S\_ aUR YRcf \S N[ NQ cNY\_RZ aNe \cR_ N aU_RR)fRN_
]R_V\Q Of N :Vaf HV[XV[T =b[Q S\_ aUR ]NfZR[a \S N[f P\b_a N``R``RQ WbQTZR[a _R[QR_RQ NTNV[`a aUR :Vaf*

LUVYR aUR \baP\ZR \S aUR NO\cR [\aRQ ]_\PRRQV[T` PN[[\a OR ]_RQVPaRQ( QbR a\ aUR V[`b_N[PR P\cR_NTR
ZNV[aNV[RQ Of aUR :Vaf N[Q aUR HaNaR `aNabaR _RYNaV[T a\ WbQTZR[a`( aUR :Vaf SRRY` aUNa N[f `RaaYRZR[a \_
WbQTZR[a [\a P\cR_RQ Of V[`b_N[PR d\bYQ [\a UNcR N ZNaR_VNY NQcR_`R RSSRPa \[ aUR SV[N[PVNY P\[QVaV\[ \S
aUR :Vaf*

Federal and State Award Programs: 

IUR :Vaf \S 8_QZ\_R ]N_aVPV]NaR` V[ cN_V\b` SRQR_NY \_ `aNaR T_N[a+Y\N[ ]_\T_NZ` S_\Z fRN_ a\ fRN_* @[ .,./(
aUR :Vafk` V[c\YcRZR[a V[ SRQR_NY N[Q `aNaR NdN_Q ]_\T_NZ` dN` [\a ZNaR_VNY* IUR T_N[a+Y\N[ ]_\T_NZ` N_R
\SaR[ `bOWRPa a\ NQQVaV\[NY NbQVa` Of NTR[a` \S aUR T_N[aV[T \_ Y\N[V[T NTR[Pf( aUR ]b_]\`R \S dUVPU V` a\
R[`b_R P\Z]YVN[PR dVaU aUR `]RPVSVP P\[QVaV\[` \S aUR T_N[a \_ Y\N[* IUR :Vaf UN` [\a ORR[ [\aVSVRQ \S N[f
[\[P\Z]YVN[PR dVaU SRQR_NY \_ `aNaR NdN_Q _R^bV_RZR[a`*

8[f YVNOVYVaf S\_ _RVZOb_`RZR[a dUVPU ZNf N_V`R N` N _R`bYa \S aUR`R NbQVa` PN[[\a OR _RN`\[NOYf QRaR_ZV[RQ
Na aUV` aVZR( NYaU\bTU Va V` ORYVRcRQ aUR NZ\b[a( VS N[f( d\bYQ [\a OR ZNaR_VNY*

))& @LUZPVU @SHU @HY[PJPWH[PVU

IUR :Vaf \S 8_QZ\_R ]N_aVPV]NaR` V[ aU_RR ]R[`V\[ \_ _RaV_RZR[a]YN[`6

� EXYNU\ZN =V_RSVTUaR_k` FR[`V\[ N[Q GRaV_RZR[a Hf`aRZ &E=FGH' h N `aNaRdVQR P\`a)`UN_V[T
]YN[*

� EXYNU\ZN F\YVPR FR[`V\[ N[Q GRaV_RZR[a Hf`aRZ &EFFGH' h N `aNaRdVQR P\`a)`UN_V[T ]YN[*

� EXYNU\ZN Cb[VPV]NY GRaV_RZR[a =b[Q h N[ NTR[a ZbYaV]YR)RZ]Y\fR_ QRSV[RQ OR[RSVa ]YN[*

6PYLMPNO[LYZb @SHU0

Plan Summary Information - IUR :Vaf \S 8_QZ\_R( N` aUR RZ]Y\fR_( ]N_aVPV]NaR` V[ N `aNaRdVQR P\`a)
`UN_V[T ZbYaV]YR RZ]Y\fR_ QRSV[RQ OR[RSVa ]R[`V\[ ]YN[ aU_\bTU aUR EXYNU\ZN =V_RSVTUaR_k` FR[`V\[ N[Q
GRaV_RZR[a Hf`aRZ &E=FGH'* IUR E=FGH QRSV[RQ OR[RSVa ]R[`V\[ ]YN[ ]_\cVQR` _RaV_RZR[a N[Q QV`NOVYVaf
OR[RSVa`( N[[bNY P\`a)\S)YVcV[T NQWb`aZR[a`( N[Q QRNaU OR[RSVa` a\ ]YN[ ZRZOR_` N[Q OR[RSVPVN_VR`* Fb_`bN[a
a\ aUR _R^bV_RZR[a` \S IVaYR --( `RPaV\[ ..)-,.( aUR :Vaf Zb`a ]N_aVPV]NaR V[ aUR ]YN[ VS aURf RZ]Y\f SbYYaVZR
\_ c\Yb[aRR_ SV_RSVTUaR_`*

Benefits provided ) E=FGH ]_\cVQR` QRSV[RQ _RaV_RZR[a OR[RSVa` ON`RQ \[ ZRZOR_`k SV[NY NcR_NTR
P\Z]R[`NaV\[( NTR( N[Q aR_Z \S `R_cVPR* @[ NQQVaV\[( aUR _RaV_RZR[a ]_\T_NZ ]_\cVQR` S\_ OR[RSVa` b]\[
QV`NOVYVaf N[Q a\ `b_cVc\_` b]\[ QRNaU \S RYVTVOYR ZRZOR_`* IUR FYN[k` OR[RSVa` N_R R`aNOYV`URQ N[Q NZR[QRQ
Of EXYNU\ZN `aNabaR* GRaV_RZR[a ]_\cV`V\[` N_R N` S\YY\d`6
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D\_ZNY GRaV_RZR[a6

� ?V_RQ F_V\_ a\ D\cRZOR_ -( .,-/
D\_ZNY _RaV_RZR[a V` NaaNV[RQ b]\[ P\Z]YRaV[T ., fRN_` \S `R_cVPR* IUR [\_ZNY _RaV_RZR[a OR[RSVa
V` R^bNY a\ 1,# \S aUR ZRZOR_k` SV[NY NcR_NTR P\Z]R[`NaV\[* =V[NY NcR_NTR P\Z]R[`NaV\[ V` QRSV[RQ
N` aUR Z\[aUYf NcR_NTR \S aUR UVTUR`a /, P\[`RPbaVcR Z\[aU` \S aUR YN`a 2, Z\[aU` \S ]N_aVPV]NaV[T
`R_cVPR* =\_ c\Yb[aRR_ SV_RSVTUaR_`( aUR Z\[aUYf ]R[`V\[ OR[RSVa S\_ [\_ZNY _RaV_RZR[a V` "-1,*2,
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For the year ended June 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of 1,167,091.  At June 30, 
2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 1,080,604$                     42,495$                              

Changes of assumptions - 53,670

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 978,226 -

Changes in proportion and differences between City 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 83,425 52,400

City contributions during measurement date 2,376 4,992

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 314,690 -

Total 2,459,321$                     153,557$                            

$314,690 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 
ended June 30, 2024. Any other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30:

2024 525,413$             

2025 444,574

2026 130,826

2027 890,261

1,991,074$          

Actuarial Assumptions- The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 
2022, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation:                               2.75%
Salary increases:                   2.75% to 10.5% average, including inflation
Investment rate of return:      7.5% net of pension plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on the following: 

� Active members – Pub-2010 Public Safety Table with generational mortality improvement using 
MP-2018. 

� Retired members – Pub-2010 Public Safety Below Median Table with generational mortality 
improvement using Scale MP-2018 

� Disabled members—Pub-2010 Public Safety Disabled Table set forward 2 years 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2022, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2013, to June 30, 2018.  

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 
of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
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rates of return  by  the  target  asset  allocation  percentage  and  by  adding  expected  inflation.  Best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2022, are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation  Real Rate of Return

Fixed income 20% 3.62%

Domestic equity 47% 5.66%

International equity 15% 8.34%

Real estate 10% 7.64%

Other assets 8% 5.08%

Discount Rate- The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually 
required rates, determined by State statutes. Projected cash flows also assume the State of Oklahoma will 
continue contributing 36% of the insurance premium, as established by statute. Based on these 
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate-The following presents the net 
pension liability of the employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as what the Plan's 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower 
(6.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase

6.5% Rate 7.5% 8.5%

Employers' net pension liability 10,846,846$                8,417,684$                  6,385,824$              

Pension plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued financial report of the FPRS which can be located at www.ok.gov/FPRS. 

Police Plan: 

Plan Summary Information - Pursuant to the requirements of Title 11, section 22-102, the City of Ardmore 
participates in the statewide cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan administered by the 
Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS). 

Benefits provided - OPPRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to members of the plan.  The 
normal retirement date under the Plan is the date upon which the participant completes 20 years of credited 
service, regardless of age. Participants become vested upon completing 10 years of credited service as a 
contributing participant of the Plan. No vesting occurs prior to completing 10 years of credited service. 
Participants’ contributions are refundable, without interest, upon termination prior to normal retirement. 
Participants who have completed 10 years of credited service may elect a vested benefit in lieu of having 
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their accumulated contributions refunded. If the vested benefit is elected, the participant is entitled to a 
monthly retirement benefit commencing on the date the participant reaches 50 years of age or the date the 
participant would have had 20 years of credited service had employment continued uninterrupted, 
whichever is later.  Monthly retirement benefits are calculated at 2.5% of the final average salary (defined 
as the average paid base salary of the officer over the highest 30 consecutive months of the last 60 months 
of credited service) multiplied by the years of credited service, with a maximum of 30 years of credited 
service considered.  

Monthly benefits for participants due to permanent disability incurred in the line of duty are 2.5% of the 
participants’ final average salary multiplied by 20 years. This disability benefit is reduced by stated 
percentages for partial disability based on the percentage of impairment. After 10 years of credited service, 
participants who retire due to disability incurred from any cause are eligible for a monthly benefit based on 
2.5% of their final average salary multiplied by the years of service. This disability benefit is also reduced 
by stated percentages for partial disability based on the percentage of impairment. Effective July 1, 1998, 
once a disability benefit is granted to a participant, that participant is no longer allowed to apply for an 
increase in the dollar amount of the benefit at a subsequent date.  

Survivor’s benefits are payable in full to the participant’s beneficiary upon the death of a retired participant. 
The beneficiary of any active participant killed in the line of duty is entitled to a pension benefit. 

Contributions – The contributions requirements of the Plan are at an established rate determined by 
Oklahoma Statute and are not based on actuarial calculations.  Employees are required to contribute 8% of 
their annual pay.  Participating cities are required to contribute 13% of the employees’ annual pay.  
Contributions to the pension plan from the City were $376,082.  The State of Oklahoma also made on-
behalf payments to the OPPRS in the amount of $341,822 during the current fiscal year and this is reported 
as both a revenue and an expenditure in the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance.  In the government-wide Statement of Activities, revenue is recognized for the 
state’s on-behalf contributions on an accrual basis of $321,411.  These on-behalf payments did not meet 
the criteria of a special funding situation. 

Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 

Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2023, the City reported a net pension asset of 
$646,823 for its proportionate share of the total net pension asset . The net pension asset was measured 
as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension asset was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2022. The City’s proportion of the net pension asset was based on 
the City’s contributions received by the pension plan relative to the total contributions received by pension 
plan for all participating employers as of June 30, 2022.  Based upon this information, the City’s proportion 
was 0.8066%. 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $167,143.  At June 30, 2023, 
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources: 
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Deferred Outflows 

of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 317,275$               70,456$                

Changes of assumptions 22,519 -

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

pension plan investments 631,168 -

Changes in proportion and differences between 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 30,664 2,465

Contributions during measurement date 2,933 7,765

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 376,081 -

Total 1,380,640$            80,686$                

$376,081 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of or an addition to  the net pension 
liability (asset) in the year ended June 30, 2024. Any other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as 
follows: 

Year ended June 30:

2024 213,032$         

2025 62,940

2026 (167,284)

2027 774,485

2028 40,700

923,873$         

Actuarial Assumptions-The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 
1, 2022, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Inflation:                             2.75%

Salary increases:                 3.5% to 12% average, including inflation

Investment rate of return:  7 .5% net of pension plan investment expense

Mortality rates:                    Active employees (pre-retirement) RP-2000 Blue Collar 

Healthy Combined table with age set back 4 years with fully 

generational improvement using Scale AA. 

Active employees (post-retirement) and nondisabled pensioners: 
RP-2000 Blue Collar Healthy Combined table with fully 
generational improvement using scale AA. 

Disabled pensioners: RP-2000 Blue Collar Healthy 

Combined table with age set forward 4 years with fully 

generational improvement using Scale AA. 
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The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2022, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2012, to June 30, 2017.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building 
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return  by  the  target  asset  allocation  percentage  and  by  adding  expected  inflation.  Best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2022, are summarized in the following table: 

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation  Real Rate of Return

Fixed income 20% 3.34%

Domestic equity 40% 4.69%

International equity 10% 8.34%

Real estate 15% 7.64%

Private equity 15% 9.66%

The current allocation policy is that approximately 65% of assets in equity instruments, including public 
equity, long-short hedge, venture capital, and private equity strategies; approximately 20% of assets 
in fixed income to include investment grade bonds, high yield and non-dollar denominated bonds, 
convertible bonds, and low volatility hedge fund strategies; and 15% of assets in real assets to include 
real estate, commodities, and other strategies. 

Discount Rate-The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually 
required rates, determined by State statutes. Projected cash flows also assume the State of Oklahoma 
will continue contributing 14% of the insurance premium, as established by statute. Based on these 
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate 
of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate-The following presents 
the net pension liability (asset) of the employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as 
what the Plan's net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower (6.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase

6.5% Rate 7.5% 8.5%

Employers' net pension liability (asset) 1,874,039$       (646,823)$             (2,777,568)$       

Pension plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued financial report of the OPPRS; which can be located at 
www.ok.gov/OPPRS. 



CITY OF ARDMORE, OKLAHOMA 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2023  

63

Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Plan (OMRF)

Plan Description- The City contributes to the OkMRF for all eligible employees except for those covered by 
the Police and Firefighter Pension Systems.  The plan is an agent multiple employer - defined benefit plan 
administered by OkMRF.  The OkMRF plan issues a separate financial report and can be obtained from 
OkMRF or from their website:  www.okmrf.org/reports.html.  Benefits are established or amended by the 
City Council in accordance with O.S. Title 11, Section 48-101-102.   

Eligibility Factors and Benefit Provisions 

Provision                                                OMRF Plan 

a. Eligible to Participate Full-time, non-uniformed employees of the City or Authority  
upon hire if less than age 60. 

b. Contribution Requirements: 
- Authorization  By City ordinance 
- Actuarially Determined Yes 
- Employer Rate  10.21% of covered payroll 
- Employee Rate  6.0% of covered payroll 

c. Period Required to Vest 5 years of credited service; July 2011-new hires 7 years of 
credited service. 

d. Eligibility for Distribution - Normal retirement at age 65 with 5 years of service 
- Early retirement at age 55 with 5 years of service                     
- Disability retirement upon disability with 5 years of service  
- 50% death benefit with 5 years of service for married 
employees 

e. Benefit Determination Base Final average salary – the average of the five highest 
consecutive annual salaries out of the last 10 calendar years of 
service 

f. Benefit Determination Methods: 
- Normal Retirement 3.0% of final average salary multiplied by credited years of 

service  

- Early Retirement Actuarially reduced benefit based upon age and years of 
service at termination 

- Disability Retirement Benefit computed as for normal retirement based upon age and 
service at termination 

- Death Benefit  50% of employee’s accrued benefit, but terminates upon 
spouse re-marriage 

- Prior to 5 Years Service Return of employee contributions with accrued interest  
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g. Form of Benefit Payments Normal form is a 60 months certain and life thereafter basis. 
Employee may elect, with City consent, optional form based 
on actuarial equivalent. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

Active Employees      165 
Deferred Vested Former Employees      30 
Retirees or Retiree Beneficiaries       72 
     Total        267   

Contribution Requirements- The City Council has the authority to set and amend contribution rates by 
ordinance for the OkMRF defined benefit plan in accordance with O.S. Title 11, Section 48-102.  The 
contribution rates for the current fiscal year have been made in accordance with an actuarially determined 
rate.  The actuarially determined rate is 6.8% of covered payroll as of 7-1-22. For the year ended June 30, 
2023, the City recognized $778,014 of employer contributions to the plan which was more than the actuarially 
determined amount based on covered payroll of $9,078,338.   

Actuarial Assumptions 

     Date of Last Actuarial Valuation    July 1, 2022 
     a.  Actuarial cost method     Entry age normal 

     b.  Rate of Return on Investments and Discount Rate 7.50% 

     c.  Projected Salary Increase    Varies between 7.50% and 4.50% based 
on age 

     d.  Post Retirement Cost-of-Living Increase  Benefits (attributable to service prior to 
1/1/2010) in payment status are adjusted 
each July 1st based on the percentage 
change in the CPI. The maximum increase 
or decrease in any year is 3%. 

     e.  Inflation Rate      2.75% 

     f.  Mortality Table      UP 1994, with projected mortality 
improvement 

     g.  Percent of married employees    100% 

     h.  Spouse age difference     3 years (female spouses younger) 

     i.  Turnover      Select and ultimate rates 
Ultimate rates are age-related as shown 
Additional rates per thousand are 
added during the first 5 years: 

         Year 1: 225 
         Year 2: 140 
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         Year 3: 100 
         Year 4:   70 
         Year 5:   40   

      j.  Date of last experience study    September 2012 for fiscal years 2007 
through 2011 

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to value benefits was the long-term expected rate of return on plan 
investments, 7.50% since the plan’s net fiduciary position is projected to be sufficient to make projected 
benefit payments.  

The City has adopted a funding method that is designed to fund all benefits payable to participants over the 
course of their working careers.  Any differences between actual and expected experience are funded over 
a fixed period to ensure all funds necessary to pay benefits have been contributed to the trust before those 
benefits are payable.  Thus, the sufficiency of pension plan assets was made without a separate projection 
of cash flows.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation (3.0%).  Best estimates 
of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset 
allocation as of July 1, 2022 are summarized in the following table: 

Target Real Weighted

Allocation Return Return

Large cap stocks 25% 5.80% 1.45%

   S&P 500

Small/mid cap stocks 10% 6.40% 0.64%

   Russell 2500

Long/short equity 10% 5.00% 0.50%

   MSCI ACWI

International stocks 20% 6.20% 1.24%

   MSCI EAFE

Fixed income bonds 30% 2.30% 0.69%

   Barclay's Capital Aggregate

Real estate 5% 4.60% 0.23%

   NCREIF

Cash equivalents 0% 0.00% 0.00%

   3 month Treasury

TOTAL 100% 4.75%
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Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) – The total pension liability was determined based on an actuarial 
valuation performed as of July 1, 2022 which is also the measurement date.  There were no changes in 
assumptions or changes in benefit terms that affected measurement of the total pension liability.  There 
were also no changes between the measurement date of July 1, 2022 and the City’s report ending date of 
June 30, 2023, that would have had a significant impact on the net pension liability (asset). The following 
table reports the components of changes in net pension liability (asset): 

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Net Net Pension

Liability Position Liability(Asset)

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances Beginning of Year 37,654,346$       44,788,942$     (7,134,596)$       

Changes for the Year:

Service cost 1,159,611 - 1,159,611

Interest expense 2,768,715 - 2,768,715

Experience losses (gains) 717,305 - 717,305

(amortized over avg remain svc period of actives & inactives)

Changes of assumptions (1,205,670) - (1,205,670)

Contributions--City - 749,793 (749,793)

Contributions--members - 524,941 (524,941)

Net investment income - (5,580,799) 5,580,799

Benefits paid (1,503,479) (1,503,479) -

Plan administrative expenses - (77,116) 77,116

Net Changes 1,936,482 (5,886,660) 7,823,142

Balances End of Year 39,590,828$       38,902,282$     688,546$           

Sensitivity of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the discount rate- The following presents the 
net pension liability (asset) of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what 
the City’s net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (6.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate: 

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Increase

6.50% Rate 7.5% 8.50%

Net Pension Liability (Asset) 5,708,864$               688,546$                  (3,520,886)$             

The City reported $440,588 in pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2023.  At June 30, 2023, the 
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 531,009$                 270,563$              

Changes of assumptions 137,668 846,840

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

plan investments 3,355,224 -

Changes in proportion and differences between 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 47,060 47,408

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 778,014 -

Total 4,848,975$              1,164,811$           
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$778,014 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of or addition to the   net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2024.  

Amortization of Pension Deferrals - Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources (excluding deferred 
outflows of resources related to contributions made subsequent to the measurement date) and deferred inflows 
of resources will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30:

2024 367,862$             

2025 441,909

2026 310,638

2027 1,785,741

2,906,150$          

City Manager Retirement Plan 

The City of Ardmore participates in the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Funds City Manager Retirement 
Plan. However, the City Manager is not required to contribute.  For the year ended June 30, 2023, the City 
Manager has elected not to participate in this plan.   

ICMA 457 Plan 

The ICMA 457 Plan is a voluntary retirement plan City employees can participate in. The City is not 
required to match funds contributed to the plan. The City contributes to the 457 Plan for certain members 
of the executive staff. The employees are not required to contribute to the plan. Contribution amounts vary 
by employee, no set percentage is required. 

The City’s contributions for the year ended June 30, 2023 were $124,809. 

12. Other Post-Employment Benefits 

Plan Description. The City sponsors Medical, Rx, and Dental insurance to qualifying retirees and their 
dependents. Coverage is provided through fully-insured arrangements that collectively operate as a 
substantive single-employer defined benefit plan. Qualifying retirees are those employees who are eligible 
for immediate disability or retirement benefits under the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System 
or the City of Ardmore Retirement Plan. Retired firefighters are not eligible to participate as they previously 
opted out to obtain a policy on their own. Retirees may continue coverage with the City by paying the 
carrier premium rate. Coverage is available for the retiree and spouse but only for the lifetime of the retiree. 
Authority to establish and amend benefit provisions rest with the City Council. Benefits are paid from 
general operating assets of the City. 
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Benefits provided. The Plan covers all current retirees of the City who elected postretirement medical 
coverage through the City Health Plan and future retired employees of the City fully self-insured health 
plan. In accordance with administrative policy, retiree contributions are approximately 65% of the average 
employee premium at 7/1/2016 decreasing to 54% at 7/1/2021. An additional contribution is required for 
dependent coverage. This creates an implicit rate subsidy. The benefits offered by the City to retirees 
include health, dental and prescription drug benefits. Benefits continue to age 65 if the retiree continues to 
make the required contribution. Certain grandfathered retirees and spouses have lifetime benefits. Dental 
benefits may be continued after age 65. 

The amount of benefit payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 were $119,876. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

Active Employees      239 
Inactive or beneficiaries receiving benefits    20 
Total       259 

Total OPEB Liability.  The total OPEB liability was determined based on an alternative measurement 
method valuation performed as of June 30, 2023. The measurement date used was June 30, 2022. 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2022 valuation was determine using the 
following actuarial assumptions: 

� Actuarial Cost Method – Entry Age 

� Discount Rate – 4.09% based on the 20 year municipal bond yield

� Retirement Age – Civilian – 55 with 7 years of service, Police and Fire - 20 years of service

� Health Care Cost Trend Rates:

o 2022   5.94% 

o  2023     5.91%

o  2024     5.88%

o  2025     5.86% 

o  2030     5.01% 

o  2035     4.97% 

o  2040     4.81% 

o  2045     4.70% 

o  2050     4.64% 

o  2055     4.58% 

o  2060     4.54% 

o  2065   4.50%  

o  2070   4.20%

o  2075   3.94%  
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1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase 

3.09% Rate 4.09% 5.09%

Total OPEB Liability 2,719,444$            2,459,061$            2,230,863$            

Sensitivity of the City’s total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rate. The following 

presents the City’s total OPEB liability, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were 

calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (4.96%) or 1-percentage point 
higher (6.96%) than the current healthcare cost trend rate: 

1% Decrease

Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 1% Increase 

4.94% 5.94% 6.94%

Grading to 3.37% Grading to 3.94% Grading to 5.37%

Total OPEB Liability 2,215,185$            2,459,061$            2,749,418$            
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT FUND

Budget and Actual (with Variances) - Budgetary Basis

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts, 

Budgetary Basis

Variance with 

Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative)

Original Final

REVENUES

Taxes 3,402,694$               3,402,694$               3,941,405$               538,711$                  

Investment earnings 7,700 7,700 16,312 8,612

Miscellaneous - - 996 996

Total revenues 3,410,394 3,410,394 3,958,713 548,319

EXPENDITURES

Departmental:

General government 2,057,400 2,060,331 1,021,244 1,039,087

Total General government 2,057,400 2,060,331 1,021,244 1,039,087

Total Expenditures 2,057,400 2,060,331 1,021,244 1,039,087

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures 1,352,994 1,350,063 2,937,469 1,587,406

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in - - - -

Transfers out (2,200,000) (2,200,000) (1,800,000) 400,000

Total other financing sources and uses (2,200,000) (2,200,000) (1,800,000) 400,000

Net change in fund balances (847,006) (849,937) 1,137,469 1,987,406

Fund balances - beginning 2,743,568 2,743,568 4,900,981 2,157,413

Fund balances - ending 1,896,562$               1,893,631$               6,038,450$               4,144,819$               

Year Ended June 30, 2023

FAA GRANT FUND (45)

Budget and Actual (with Variances) - Budgetary Basis

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts, 

Budgetary Basis

Variance with 

Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative)

Original Final

REVENUES

Intergovernmental 8,000,000$               8,320,000$               93,647$                    (8,226,353)$              

Miscellaneous 355,100 355,100 323,849 (31,251)

Total revenues 8,355,100 8,675,100 417,496 (8,257,604)

EXPENDITURES

Departmental:

Airport 8,710,200 9,030,200 424,332 8,605,868

Total Airport 8,710,200 9,030,200 424,332 8,605,868

Total Expenditures 8,710,200 9,030,200 424,332 8,605,868

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures (355,100) (355,100) (6,836) 348,264

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out - - - -

Total other financing sources and uses - - - -

Net change in fund balances (355,100) (355,100) (6,836) 348,264

Fund balances - beginning 933,071 933,071 (3,485) (936,556)

Fund balances - ending 577,971$                  577,971$                  (10,321)$                   (588,292)$                 

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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LIBRARY TRUST FUND (93)

Budget and Actual (with Variances) - Budgetary Basis

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts, 

Budgetary Basis

Variance with 

Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative)

Original Final

REVENUES

Investment earnings 22,048$                    22,048$                    64,216$                    42,168$                    

Miscellaneous 204,167 208,767 262,568 53,801

Total revenues 226,215 230,815 326,784 95,969

EXPENDITURES

Departmental:

Culture and recreation 8,400 13,000 12,918 82

Total Culture and recreation 8,400 13,000 12,918 82

Total Expenditures 8,400 13,000 12,918 82

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures 217,815 217,815 313,866 96,051

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers out (700,000) (700,000) (300,000) 400,000

Total other financing sources (700,000) (700,000) (300,000) 400,000

Net change in fund balances (482,185) (482,185) 13,866 496,051

Fund balances - beginning 4,822,194 4,822,194 4,759,110 (63,084)

Fund balances - ending 4,340,009$               4,340,009$               4,772,976$               432,967$                  

Year Ended June 30, 2023

GAPS TAX CITY FUND

Budget and Actual (with Variances) - Budgetary Basis

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts, 

Budgetary Basis

Variance with 

Final Budget - 

Positive (Negative)

Original Final

REVENUES

Taxes 3,402,694$               3,402,694$               3,929,891$               527,197$                  

Investment earnings 9,704 9,704 15,681 5,977

Total revenues 3,412,398 3,412,398 3,945,572 533,174

EXPENDITURES

Departmental:

General government 4,671,800 4,299,228 1,810,527 2,488,701

Total General government 4,671,800 4,299,228 1,810,527 2,488,701

Total Expenditures 4,671,800 4,299,228 1,810,527 2,488,701

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures (1,259,402) (886,830) 2,135,045 3,021,875

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in - - 16,627 16,627

Transfers out (1,683,974) (2,308,974) (2,308,645) 329

Total other financing sources (1,683,974) (2,308,974) (2,292,018) 16,956

Net change in fund balances (2,943,376) (3,195,804) (156,973) 3,038,831

Fund balances - beginning 3,538,737 3,538,737 5,623,022 2,084,285

Fund balances - ending 595,361$                  342,933$                  5,466,049$               5,123,116$               

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Footnotes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules: 

1. The City prepares its budgets for all funds on the modified accrual basis of accounting with the 
exception of payroll accruals, certain revenues and expenditures related to leases, subscription-
based information technology arrangements, on-behalf payments for police and fire, and sales 
tax revenue transfers.  For budgetary purposes, expenditures are recorded in the period the 
invoice is received, except for payroll expenditures that are recorded when paid.  

2. The legal level of appropriation control is the department level within a fund. Transfers of 
appropriation within a fund require the approval of the City Commission.  All supplemental 
appropriations require the approval of the City Commission. Supplemental appropriations must 
be filed with the Office of the State Auditor and Inspector.  

3. The budgetary basis differs from the modified accrual basis as shown in the schedule below: 

Community

General Enhancement FAA Grant Library Trust GAPS Tax City

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Total revenue - budgetary basis 23,034,947$        3,958,713$       417,496$             326,784$             3,962,199$          

Total expenses - budgetary basis (21,693,686) (2,821,244) (424,332) (312,918) (4,119,172)

   Change in fund balance - budgetary basis 1,341,261 1,137,469 (6,836) 13,866 (156,973)

Revenue accruals 5,143,276 - - - 11,514

Expenditure accruals (5,168,331) - - (148,122) -

   Change in fund balance - GAAP basis 1,316,206$          1,137,469$       (6,836)$                (134,256)$            (145,459)$            
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Schedules of Required Supplementary Information

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

OKLAHOMA FIREFIGHTERS PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

City's proportion of the net pension 

liability 0.6716109% 0.6709177% 0.6364976% 0.6597064% 0.6391870% 0.6380100% 0.6327740% 0.6451050% 0.6436850%

City's proportionate share of the net 

pension liability 6,906,497$       7,121,176$       7,776,178$       8,297,271$       7,194,985$       6,741,648$       7,795,218$       4,248,445$       8,417,684$       

City's covered payroll 1,731,982$       1,833,106$       1,780,408$       1,946,200$       1,901,064$       1,976,929$       2,031,424$       2,022,299$       2,130,576$       

City's proportionate share of the net 

pension liability as a percentage of its 

covered-employee payroll 399% 388% 437% 426% 378% 341% 384% 210% 395%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 

percentage of the total pension liability 68.12% 68.27% 64.87% 66.61% 70.73% 72.85% 69.98% 84.24% 69.49%

*The amounts present for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30

Notes to Schedule:

Only nine fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is  not yet available.

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

OKLAHOMA FIREFIGHTERS PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Statutorially required contribution 256,635$          249,258$          272,468$          266,149$          276,770$          284,400$          283,122$          298,281$          314,690$          

Contributions in relation to the 

statutorially required contribution 256,635 249,258 272,468 266,149 276,770 284,400 283,122 298,281 314,690

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                - -

City's covered payroll 1,833,107$       1,780,414$       1,946,200$       1,901,064$       1,976,929$       2,031,424$       2,022,299$       2,130,576$       2,247,788$       

Contributions as a percentage of covered-

employee payroll 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00%

Notes to Schedule:

Only nine fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is  not yet available.
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Schedules of Required Supplementary Information

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)

OKLAHOMA POLICE PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

City's proportion of the net pension liability 

(asset) 0.8494% 0.8664% 0.8798% 0.9309% 0.9283% 0.8730% 0.7900% 0.8046% 0.8066%

City's proportionate share of the net pension 

liability (asset) (285,990)$        35,326$           1,347,423$       71,607$           (442,198)$        (55,733)$          906,894$         (3,859,816)$     (646,823)$        

City's covered payroll 2,376,325$       2,448,931$       2,594,723$       2,870,954$       2,837,692$       2,830,785$       2,639,108$       2,697,089$       2,889,151$       

City's proportionate share of the net pension 

liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered-

employee payroll -12.03% 1.44% 51.93% 2.49% -15.58% -1.97% 34.36% -143.11% -22.39%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total pension liability 101.53% 99.82% 93.50% 99.68% 101.89% 100.24% 95.80% 117.07% 102.74%

*The amounts present for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30

Notes to Schedule:

Only nine fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

OKLAHOMA POLICE PENSION & RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Statutorially required contribution 318,361$         337,314$         373,224$         368,900$         368,002$         343,084$         350,622$         375,591$         376,082$         

Contributions in relation to the statutorially 

required contribution 318,361 337,314 373,224 368,900 368,002 343,084 350,622 375,591 376,082

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                

City's covered payroll 2,448,931$       2,594,723$       2,870,954$       2,837,692$       2,830,785$       2,639,108$       2,697,089$       2,889,151$       2,892,930$       

Contributions as a percentage of covered-

employee payroll 13.00% 13.00% 13.00% 13.00% 13.00% 13.00% 13.00% 13.00% 13.00%

Notes to Schedule:

Only nine fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.
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Required Supplementary Information

Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios Last Nine Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Total pension liability

Service cost 1,128,774$          1,258,516$           1,280,059$           1,260,934$           1,240,101$           1,236,570$           1,285,007$          1,285,320$          1,159,611$          

Interest 1,559,184 1,640,888 1,788,599 1,941,697 2,101,240 2,225,073 2,430,898 2,579,746 2,768,715

Changes of benefit terms - - - - - - - - -

Differences between expected and actual experience - (371,969) (388,309) (326,953) (681,761) (403,073) (582,337) 63,439 717,305

Changes of assumptions - - - 971,557 - 672,302 - - (1,205,670)

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (434,050) (578,537) (666,062) (745,201) (1,029,226) (986,938) (986,141) (1,317,714) (1,503,479)

Net change in total pension liability 2,253,908 1,948,898 2,014,287 3,102,034 1,630,354 2,743,934 2,147,427 2,610,791 1,936,482

Total pension liability - beginning 19,202,713 21,456,621 23,405,519 25,419,806 28,521,840 30,152,194 32,896,128 35,043,555 37,654,346

Total pension liability - ending (a) 21,456,621$        23,405,519$         25,419,806$         28,521,840$         30,152,194$         32,896,128$         35,043,555$        37,654,346$        39,590,828$        

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer 1,125,336$          1,014,468$           847,375$              782,365$              712,659$              749,482$              738,814$             814,059$             749,793$             

Contributions - member 471,839 479,653 497,968 499,382 497,441 513,871 521,654 524,635 524,941

Net investment income 3,129,727 654,125 239,592 3,161,435 2,135,242 2,174,321 1,401,002 9,744,214 (5,580,799)

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (434,050) (578,537) (666,062) (745,201) (1,029,226) (986,938) (986,141) (1,317,714) (1,503,479)

Administrative expense (46,482) (48,122) (48,765) (55,881) (60,866) (66,780) (69,940) (72,138) (77,116)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 4,246,370 1,521,587 870,108 3,642,100 2,255,250 2,383,956 1,605,389 9,693,056 (5,886,660)

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 18,571,126 22,817,496 24,339,083 25,209,191 28,851,291 31,106,541 33,490,497 35,095,886 44,788,942

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 22,817,496$        24,339,083$         25,209,191$         28,851,291$         31,106,541$         33,490,497$         35,095,886$        44,788,942$        38,902,282$        

Net pension liability (asset) - ending (a) - (b) (1,360,875)$         (933,564)$            210,615$              (329,451)$            (954,347)$            (594,369)$            (52,331)$              (7,134,596)$         688,546$             

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension liability 106.34% 103.99% 99.17% 101.16% 103.17% 101.81% 100.15% 118.95% 98.26%

Covered employee payroll 7,938,819$          8,059,981$           8,247,671$           8,022,574$           8,236,196$           8,324,901$           8,610,995$          8,253,752$          8,397,557$          

Net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of covered- -17.14% -11.58% 2.55% -4.11% -11.59% -7.14% -0.61% -86.44% 8.20%

employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:

Only nine fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.
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Required Supplementary Information

Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund

Schedule of Employer Contributions Last Nine Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Actuarially determined contribution 1,018,499$              855,186$                 815,114$                 712,659$                 748,867$                 737,961$                 814,059$                 749,793$                 617,327$                 

Contributions in relation to the actuarially 1,018,499 855,186 815,114 712,659 748,867 737,961 814,059 749,793 778,014

determined contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        - (160,687)

Covered employee payroll 7,986,208$              8,298,332$              8,643,783$              8,284,562$              8,564,524$              8,689,322$              8,743,934$              8,749,037$              9,078,338$              

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 12.8% 10.3% 9.4% 8.6% 8.7% 8.5% 9.3% 8.6% 8.6%

Notes to Schedule:

1.  Only nine fiscal years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.

2.  Lates t Valuation Date:  July 1, 2022

3.  Actuarially determined contribution rate is calculated as of July 1, 2014, July 1, 2015,  July 1, 2016, July 1, 2017, July 1, 2018,  July 1, 2019, July 1, 2020, July 1, 2021 and July 1, 2022.

FY14-15 contributions were at a rate of 12.8%

FY15-16 contributions were at a rate of 10.3%

FY16-17 contributions were at a rate of 9.4%

FY17-18 contributions were at a rate of 8.6%

FY18-19 contributions were at a rate of 8.7%

FY19-20 contributions were at a rate of 8.5%

FY20-21 contributions were at a rate of 9.3%

FY21-22 contributions were at a rate of 8.6%

FY22-23 contributions were at a rate of 8.6%

4.  Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method - Entry age normal

Amortization method - Level percent of payroll, closed

Remaining amortization period - 28 years

Asset valuation method - Actuarial:

Smoothing period - 4 years

Recognition method - Non-asymptotic

Corridor - 70% - 130%

Salary increases - 4.50% to 7.50% (varies by attained age)

Investment rate of return - 7.25%

Schedules of Required Supplementary Information

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

EMPLOYMENT HEALTH INSURANCE IMPLICIT RATE SUBSIDY PLAN

Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost 354,770$          314,357$          262,225$          282,044$         223,813$         226,623$         

Interest 124,315 172,278 182,521 175,294 81,254 91,152

Differences between expected and actual 

experience - (11,476) 53,554 30,110 225,952 (32,021)

Changes in assumptions (386,648) (399,035) (70,544) 467,105 163,581 (1,279,857)

Benefit Payments (85,135) (119,916) (155,473) (170,147) (154,076) (119,876)

Benefit changes due to plan amendments (2,057,908) - (420,338)

Net change in total OPEB liability 7,302$              (43,792)$           272,283$          (1,273,502)$     540,524$         (1,534,317)$     

Balances- Beginning of Year 4,490,563$        4,497,865$        4,454,073$        4,726,356$      3,452,854$      3,993,378$      

Balances- End of Year 4,497,865$        4,454,073$        4,726,356$        3,452,854$      3,993,378$      2,459,061$      

Covered employee payroll 13,040,000$      12,444,000$      12,950,000$      13,082,000$     13,048,000$     13,442,000$     

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of

covered employee payroll 34.49% 35.79% 36.50% 26.39% 30.61% 18.29%

Notes to Schedule:

Only six years are presented because 10-year data is not yet available.
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Combining Schedule of Net Position – APWA Water Enterprise Fund Accounts – June 30, 2023 

Water 

Enterprise

Utilities 

Account

Series 2011 

Note Account Total

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,757,376$         -$                   76$                   1,757,452$         

Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 421,130 4,528,943 4,950,073

Investments 10,531,441 - 453 10,531,894

Accounts receivable, net of allowance 1,175,998 - - 1,175,998

Due from other funds 246,118 - - 246,118

Inventories 332,389 - - 332,389

Total current assets 14,043,322 421,130 4,529,472 18,993,924

Non-current assets:

Land and construction in progress 163,006 - - 163,006

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 25,278,240 - - 25,278,240

Total non-current assets 25,441,246 - - 25,441,246

Total assets 39,484,568 421,130 4,529,472 44,435,170

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amount related to pensions 818,008 - - 818,008

Deferred amount related to OPEB 107,606 - - 107,606

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 925,614 - - 925,614

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 224,511 - 77,510 302,021

Accrued interest payable - - 68,990 68,990

Due to other funds 2,038 - - 2,038

Other payables 15,278 - - 15,278

Current portion of:

Compensated absences 16,014 - - 16,014

Deposits subject to refund - 84,226 - 84,226

Subscriptions payable 109,344 - - 109,344

Notes payable - - 4,158,078 4,158,078

Total current liabilities 367,185 84,226 4,304,578 4,755,989

Non-current liabilities:

Compensated absences 144,124 - - 144,124

Deposits subject to refund - 336,904 - 336,904

Total OPEB liability 279,658 - - 279,658

Net pension liability 116,959 - - 116,959

Subscriptions payable 82,264 - - 82,264

Notes payable - - 7,326,267 7,326,267

Total non-current liabilities 623,005 336,904 7,326,267 8,286,176

Total liabilities 990,190 421,130 11,630,845 13,042,165

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amounts related to pensions 197,730 - - 197,730

Deferred amounts related to OPEB 184,401 - - 184,401

Total deferred inflows of resources 382,131 - - 382,131

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 25,441,246 - (11,484,345) 13,956,901

Unrestricted 13,596,615 - 4,382,972 17,979,587

Total net position 39,037,861$       -$                   (7,101,373)$       31,936,488$       
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Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – APWA Water 

Enterprise Fund Accounts – Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Water 

Enterprise Utilities Account

Series 2011 Note 

Account Total

REVENUES

Water 8,797,611$         -$                      -$                      8,797,611$         

Total operating revenues 8,804,021 - - 8,804,021

OPERATING EXPENSES

Water operations 4,041,156 - - 4,041,156

Administration - - 8,789 8,789

Depreciation and amortization 2,093,092 - - 2,093,092

Total Operating Expenses 6,134,248 - 8,789 6,143,037

Operating income (loss) 2,669,773 - (8,789) 2,660,984

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest and investment revenue 35,685 - 136,984 172,669

Miscellaneous revenue 323 - - 323

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 14,098 - - 14,098

Interest expense (282) - (265,542) (265,824)

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 49,824 - (128,558) (78,734)

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 2,719,597 - (137,347) 2,582,250

Capital contributions 918,754 - - 918,754

Interaccount transfer in 594,885 - 1,084,701 1,679,586

Interaccount transfer out (1,084,701) - (594,885) (1,679,586)

Transfers in 1,970,702 - 3,522,272 5,492,974

Transfers out (2,350,000) - (16,627) (2,366,627)

Change in net position 2,769,237 - 3,858,114 6,627,351

Total net position - beginning 36,268,624 - (10,959,487) 25,309,137

Total net position - ending 39,037,861$       -$                      (7,101,373)$        31,936,488$       
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Combining Statement of Net Position – Nonmajor Enterprise Funds – June 30, 2023 

Lakeview Golf 

Course

Golf Course 

Building Total

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 65,957$             8,312$             74,269$         

Investments 393,666 49,606 443,272

Total current assets 459,623 57,918 517,541

Non-current assets:

Capital assets:

Other capital assets,net of accumulated depreciation 612,979 - 612,979

Total non-current assets 612,979 - 612,979

Total assets 1,072,602 57,918 1,130,520

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 879 - 879

Total liabilities 879 - 879

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 614,578 - 614,578

Unrestricted 457,145 57,918 515,063

Total net position 1,071,723$         57,918$           1,129,641$    

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – Nonmajor Enterprise 

Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Lakeview Golf 

Course

Golf Course 

Building Total

REVENUES

Charges for services - Golf 660,050$            15,219$             675,269$            

Miscellaneous 14,316 - 14,316

Total operating revenues 674,366 15,219 689,585

OPERATING EXPENSES

Golf operations 601,872 2,213 604,085

Depreciation 55,560 - 55,560

Total operating expenses 657,432 2,213 659,645

Operating income (loss) 16,934 13,006 29,940

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest and investment revenue 1,006 161 1,167

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 1,006 161 1,167

Income (loss) before transfers 17,940 13,167 31,107

Transfers in 130,000 - 130,000

Transfers out - - -

Change in net position 147,940 13,167 161,107

Total net position - beginning 923,783 44,751 968,534

Total net position - ending 1,071,723$         57,918$             1,129,641$         
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Nonmajor Enterprise Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Lakeview Golf 

Course

Golf Course 

Building Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers 674,366$            15,219$             689,585$            

Payments to suppliers and employees (601,457) (2,213) (603,670)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 72,909 13,006 85,915

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers from other funds 130,000 - 130,000

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 130,000 - 130,000

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Sale (purchase) of investments (393,666) (49,606) (443,272)

Interest and dividends 1,006 161 1,167

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (392,660) (49,445) (442,105)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (189,751) (36,439) (226,190)

Balances - beginning of year 255,708 44,751 300,459

Balances - end of year 65,957$             8,312$               74,269$             

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:

Cash and cash equivalents 65,957$             8,312$               74,269$             

Total cash and cash equivalents, end of year 65,957$             8,312$               74,269$             

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)

  Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss) 16,934$             13,006$             29,940$             

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by

   (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 55,560 - 55,560

Change in assets and liabilities:

Accounts payable 415 - 415

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 72,909$             13,006$             85,915$             
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Combining Statement of Net Position – Internal Service Funds – June 30, 2023 

Garage Fund

Employee 

Benefit Total

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 51,658$             273,375$          325,033$       

Investments 308,576 179,023 487,599

Due from other funds 42,072 203,601 245,673

Other receivables - 89,997 89,997

Inventories 22,601 - 22,601

Total assets 424,907 745,996 1,170,903

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amounts related to OPEB 25,249 - 25,249

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 43,272 - 43,272

Due to other funds 26,170 90,561 116,731

Due to employees - 41,211 41,211

Compensated absences 3,252 - 3,252

Total current liabilities 72,694 131,772 204,466

Non-current liabilities:

Compensated absences 29,272 - 29,272

Total OPEB liability 48,217 - 48,217

Claims payable - 274,760 274,760

Total non-current liabilities 77,489 274,760 352,249

Total liabilities 150,183 406,532 556,715

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amounts related to OPEB 42,888 - 42,888

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 257,085 339,464 596,549

Total net position 257,085$            339,464$          596,549$       

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – Internal Service Funds 

– Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Garage Fund

Employee 

Benefit Total

REVENUES

Charges for services 1,128,999$         4,556,381$         5,685,380$         

Total operating revenues 1,128,999 4,556,381 5,685,380

OPERATING EXPENSES

General government 1,031,301 5,256,388 6,287,689

Total operating expenses 1,031,301 5,256,388 6,287,689

Operating income (loss) 97,698 (700,007) (602,309)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest and investment revenue 541 2,870 3,411

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 541 2,870 3,411

Change in net position 98,239 (697,137) (598,898)

Total net position - beginning 158,846 1,036,601 1,195,447

Total net position - ending 257,085$            339,464$            596,549$            
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Internal Service Funds – Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Garage Fund

Employee 

Benefit Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers 1,128,999$         4,567,764$         5,696,763$         

Receipts (payments) from (to) other funds 502 (17,888) (17,386)

Payments to suppliers (615,052) - (615,052)

Payments to employees (435,498) - (435,498)

Claims and judgements paid - (5,239,475) (5,239,475)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 78,951 (689,599) (610,648)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Sale (purchase) of investments (308,576) (179,023) (487,599)

Interest and dividends 541 2,870 3,411

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (308,035) (176,153) (484,188)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (229,084) (865,752) (1,094,836)

Balances - beginning of year 280,742 1,139,127 1,419,869

Balances - end of year 51,658$             273,375$            325,033$            

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:

Cash and cash equivalents 51,658$             273,375$            325,033$            

Total cash and cash equivalents, end of year 51,658$             273,375$            325,033$            

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by 

  (used in) Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss) 97,698$             (700,007)$           (602,309)$           

Change in assets, liabilities and deferrals:

Other receivables - 11,383 11,383

Due from other funds - (17,888) (17,888)

Inventory 1,719 - 1,719

Accounts payable (14,451) - (14,451)

Due to other funds 502 - 502

Due to employees - (975) (975)

Claims payable - 17,888 17,888

Total OPEB liability (48,397) - (48,397)

Accrued compensated absences 534 - 534

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources 41,346 - 41,346

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 78,951$             (689,599)$           (610,648)$           
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Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards 

State Grantor/Pass Through Agency Award Awards

Grantor/Program Title Grant # Amount Expended

STATE AWARDS:

Oklahoma Department of Libraries:

State Aid N/A 16,991$               16,991$               

Emergency Management Department:

   FEMA HS 2022 Trailer Repairs HS-2022 1,200 1,106

          TOTAL STATE AWARDS 18,191$               18,097$               

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Footnotes to the Schedules of Expenditures of State Awards: 

1.  The Schedules of Expenditures of State Awards are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting. 
The expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred regardless of when the award proceeds 
are received.

2. The City has not been notified of any noncompliance with federal or state award requirements. 
Any liability for reimbursement which may arise as a result of these audits cannot be reasonably 
determined at this time, although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material.
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SINGLE AUDIT AND INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE INFORMATION 



Russell & Williams CPAs, PC 

Casey J. Russell, C.P.A., M.B.A. 

Autumn L. Williams, C.P.A., Esq. 
Member AICPA & OSCPA 

2812 NW 57th Street, Suite 102 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73112 

Phone: (405) 607-8743 

Fax: (405) 607-8744 
Email: caseycpa@hotmail.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Members of the City Commission 
City of Ardmore, Oklahoma 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Ardmore, Oklahoma, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the basic financial statements of the City's primary government as listed in the table of contents, and 
have issued our report thereon dated February 14, 2024. The City of Ardmore, Oklahoma has chosen to omit all 
financial information related to its discretely presented component units, the inclusion of which is required by 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Our opinions on the basic financial statements referred to above 
contains an adverse opinion related to the omission of the financial information of the discretely presented 
component units, and also contains a disclaimer of opinion on required supplemental information. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
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our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
February 14, 2024 
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Russell & Williams CPAs, PC 

Casey J. Russell, C.P.A., M.B.A. 

Autumn L. Williams, C.P.A., Esq. 

Member AICPA & OSCPA 

2812 NW 5'P' Street, Suite 102 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73112 

Phone: (405) 607-8743 

Fax: (405) 607-8744 
Email: caseycpa@hotmail.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Members of the City Commission 
City of Ardmore, Oklahoma 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject 
to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of Ardmore, 
Oklahoma's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's major federal programs 
are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, City of Ardmore, Oklahoma complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 
30, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of City of Ardmore, Oklahoma and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does 
not provide a legal determination of City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's compliance with the compliance requirements referred 
to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and 
provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's 
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting 
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, 
it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's 
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the 
Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding City 
of Ardmore, Oklahoma's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of City of Ardmore, Oklahoma's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that 
we identified during the audit. 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of noncompliance which would be required to be reported in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness 
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report 
is not suitable for any other purpose. 

-•,44°- 41/z Xisui 69,4 Pc—

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
February 14, 2024 
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Federal Agency or Program or

Federal/State Grantor/Pass through agency AL Pass Thru Award Federal

Grantor/Program Title Number Number Amount Expenditures

FEDERAL ASSISTANCE:

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR:

Passed through Oklahoma Historical Society:

Historic Preservation Fund Grants-In-Aid 15.904 22-613 10,500$ 1,106$

Total U.S. Department of Interior 10,500 1,106

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

Bureau of Justice Assistance - JAG Grant 16.738 15PBJA-22-GG-02677-JAGX 17,192 17,192

Sub-total CFDA 16.738 17,192 17,192

District Attorney's Council - 2022 Coverell NFSIA 16.742 NFSIA 22F001 3,208 3,208

Sub-total CFDA 16.742 3,208 3,208

Bureau of Justice Assistance - Bulletproof Vest Partnership 2022 16.607 2022 BVP 4,800 4,800

Sub-total CFDA 16.607 4,800 4,800

Total U.S. Department of Justice 25,200 25,200

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:

Passed through Oklahoma Aeronautics Commission:

Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-40-0005-022-2021 59,000 59,000

Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-40-0006-021-2021 1,712,580 675,573

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 1,771,580 734,573

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT:

Passed through Oklahoma Department of Commerce:

Community Developmet Block Grant 14.228 18606 CDBG 2022 195,188 2,800

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 195,188 2,800

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LIBRARIES:

Citizenship Grant (ODL) - 2021 45.310 N/A 14,000 2,866

Citizenship Grant (ODL) - 2022 45.310 N/A 14,000 14,000

ARPA Multifunction Printer Grant 45.310 ARPA 750 750

Continuing Education Grant 45.310 FY 22 1,500 1,500

Total U.S. Department of Libraries 30,250 19,116

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:

Passed through Oklahoma Department of Emergency Management:

  Emergency Mgmt Reimb - State 20-21 97.042 EMPG 22 30,126 22,595

  Emergency Mgmt Reimb - State 19-20 97.042 EMPG 21 30,126 7,532

Sub-total CFDA 97.042 60,252 30,127

Passed through Oklahoma Department of Emergency Management:

FEMA DR 4587 (Fire and Dispatch Overtime-Winter Event) 97.036 4587DR-OK-(PW 22) 9,656 1,609

Sub-total CFDA 97.036 9,656 1,609

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 69,908 31,736

  TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 2,102,626$                 814,531$

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal award activity of the City of Ardmore, Oklahoma (the "City")

under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of

Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform

Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,

changes in net position, or cash flows of the City.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following cost principles

contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Note 3. Indirect Cost Rate

The City has not elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023



City of Ardmore, Oklahoma 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ending June 30, 2023 

Summary of Auditor's Results 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statement of the City of 
Ardmore, Oklahoma 

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of Ardmore, 
Oklahoma was disclosed during the audit. 

4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported 
in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the U.S. Department of Transportation, Airport 
Improvement Program, expresses an unqualified opinion. 

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 2 CFR 200.561(a) of 
the Uniform Guidance in the Schedule. 

7. The program tested as a major program was: U.S. Department of Transportation, Airport 
Improvement Program, Federal AL Number 20.106. 

8. The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000. 

9. City of Ardmore, Oklahoma qualified as a low-risk auditee. 

Findings-Financial Statement Audit 

None 
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